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STRATEGIC REPORT

Our vision

To be leaders in our chosen professional
services giving outstanding advice and
transactional support to enable clients to
protect, enhance and realise the value of
their assets, businesses and investments
throughout the economic cycle.




Financial highlights

REVENUE

£70.5m

(2019 £60.1m)

ADJUSTED PROFIT
BEFORE TAX'

£9.2m-

(2019 £7.0m)
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For more on who we are and what we do:

www.begbies-traynorgroup.com/investor-relations
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STRATEGIC REPORT

At a glance

Begbies Traynor Group plcis a leading business recovery,
financial advisory and property services consultuncy.

Our services

=

Corporate and
personal insolvency
We handle the largest number
of corporate appointments
in the UK, principally
serving the mid-market
and smaller companies.

Valuations

Valuation of property,
businesses, machinery and
business assets.

Our businesses

E .
Q Begbies Traynor

Corporate finance

Buy and sell side support
on corpcerate transactions.

Vs

Transactional services

Sale of property, machinery and
other business assets through
physical and online auctions;
business sales agency;
commerdial property agency
focussed on northern and
eastern England.

@' BTG Advisory

BARKER STOREY

MATTHEWS

Part of Eddisons

@ Begbies Traynor Group pic Annual report and accounts 2020

Financial advisory

Business and financial
restructuring, debt advisory,
forensic accounting and
investigations, due diligence
and transactional support.

Property consultancy,
planning and
management

Building consultancy, commercial

property management, specialist

insurance and vacant property

risk management, transport
planning and design.

7 Springboard

Corporate Finance
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Why invest?

Strong track record of cash-generative,

ComPI'Ehensive profitable growth with a well-established

progressive dividend policy
HEtwork AlM listed since 2004:

of lotations across the UK ) ) .
» highly experienced board and senior

management team

« lang-established corporate structure

. with separation of equity, management
and fee earners
740 Strongly positioned in counter-cyclical
activities, representing 70% of total
staff and partners
revenue

Market-leading business recovery

practice taking the largest number of

corporate insolvency appointments in
CAGRin adjusted EPS the UK, with a focus on mid-market and

Of 160/0 smaller companies

v/ last f Strong referral network across the group
in last five years leading to high levels of repeat business

Diverse income streams provide multiple
sources of growth across the economic
cycle in fragmented markets

Organic growth strategy complemented

; Pl.‘OfESSiOI‘lal Staff by value-accretive acquisitions across

our service lines, enabled by a strong

include:
balance sheet

+ licensed insolvency
practitioners

afs
» gLeountants "
» chartered I
surveyors

» lawyers
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chairman’s statement

Ric Traynor

Executive chairman

Introduction

| am pleased to report a year of strong financial performance
with growth in revenue and earnings, This reflects the benefit of
investment in both organic development and acquisitions in line
with our group strategy.

Following the introduction of the COVID-12 lockdown restrictions in
the final six weeks of our financial year, the majority of the group was
able to continue to provide advice and support Lo our chents by

successfully warking remotely, albeit a minority of our service lIines
within property adwvisory and transactional services were disrupted.

Our business recavery and financial advisory activities performed
well in the year, with an increase in our market share in insolvency
to 10% (by volume), a strong performance from our advisory team,
and contributions from current and prior year acquisitions.

Our property advisory and transactional service teams delivered a
solid financial performance for the year with profits in line with last
year, having absorbed the impact of the COVID lockdown, reflecung
the breadth of services and expertise in the division. The investments
In recent years leave the divisicn well placed as commercial activities
resume following the easing of lockdown restrictions.

The group has continued to generate strong cash flows in the year,
which together with funds raised from a share placing in July 2019,
has enabled the group to reduce its net debt, complete three
acquisitions, and propose increasing the dividend for the year.

o6

I am pleased to report a year of
strong financial performance”
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Overall, the group is N a very strong position with an increase in our
scale and capabilities and a breadth of service lines which generate
good margins and are highly cash generative. We have a stroeng
bafance sheet with a substantial reduction in leverage in the year
and significant headroom in our committed bank faclities, providing
resources for arganic and acquisitive investment in the group.

The increased scale of the group's activities with a focus on
counter-cychcal services and our strong financial position leaves
the group well placed to continue our track record of revenue and
profit growth.

Results

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ was adopted from the start of the financial year.
All comparative figures have been restated in accordance with the
new standard, which has been adopted on a fully retrospective
basis. Further details are included in note 2 {t).

Group revenue in the year increased by 17% to £70.5 miliion (2019:
£60.1 million), 5% of which was organic. Adjusted” profit before tax?
increased by 31% to £9.2 million (2019 £7.0 million) Statutory profit
before tax was £2.9 milhon (2019: £3.3 million)

Adjusted? basic earnings per share increased by 18% to 5 7p
(2019 4 8p). Basic earnings per share was 0.7p (2019: 2.0p).

MNet debt decreased to £2.8 million (2019: £6.0 million) with
leverage (caiculated as net debt to EBITDA-) improving to 0.3 times
(2019: Q.7 times).

COVID-19 impact and response

Our response to the COVID-19 pandemic focussed on the health, safety
and well-being of our people and followed HM Government's advice on
working practices. We quickly enabled the majority of our employees to
work remotely and securely from the commencement of lockdown. The
ability to operate remately has been enhanced by investments made
1o improve the digital capabilities of the group. including the ability
to host online auctions for the sale of assets, electronic document
rnanagement sclutions, a rebust and flexible IT infrastructure and
ongoing investment in our digital rarketing activiues.

The impact of the lockdown was as follows:

Business recovery and advisery continued to be appointed on and
progress cases, realise assets and complete transactions as usual.

The majority of property advisary and transactional service lIines
have been able to operate remotely. However, commercial property
agency and valuations together with the business sales agency
service lines were disrupted as the lockdown paused activities,
which reduced revenue in the financial year by ¢.£1 million, partially
mitigated by £0.4 million of cost reductions.

1 Treboard uses adjusted pel “ormance measures 10 orovide meaningful informatian
on the operating performance of the business The items excluded from our
adiusted resulis are those which anise due to acquis tons i arcordance with [FRS 3
They ae not ~~fluerced oy e day-to-day cueranions of tne group

2 Prof thefare tax £2 9 milhos {2012 £3.2 million} plus transacucn costs £3 2 mell on
(2019 £1 3 mulien; and amortisation of inteng'ble assers ar SINg 0N acq./isiions
F31 milhion (2019 £2.4 milhon)

3 Seereconchation = ~ote *0

4 Calculated as net gebt to operating pro‘it before transaction costs, amarnsat on,
depreciation or tangible assets, sofuware amorusat on and after finance charga en
lease hatilhities



The group’s operating cash generation remained robust throughout
the lockdown penod and the group has maintained low levels of debt
ard a strong finandial position. As a result of this we have not made
any claims under the Government's coronavirus sUpport schemes,

Dividend

The board is pleased to recommend {(subject to shareholder approval
at the company's annual general maeting on 17 Septernber 2020)
an 8% increase in the total dividend for the year to 2.8p {2019: 2.6p),
representing our third consecutive year of dividend growth. This
comprises the interim dividend already paid of 0.9p {(2019: 0.3p)
and a proposed final dividend of 19p (2019: 1.8p).

This reflects the board's confidence in the group’s financial
position and the resilience of our financial performance. We
remain committed to our long-term progressive dividend policy,
which takes account of the market sutiook, and the group's
earnings growth and investment plans.

The final dividend will be paid on 5 Novernber 2020 to shareholders
on the register on @ October 2020, with an ex-dividend date of
8 October 2020.

Strategy

We believe that the execution of our strategy will continue to
enhance shareholder value throygh the delivery of strong,
sustainable financial performance.

Crganic growth will be targeted through:
- retention and development of our existing partners and employees;
recruitment of new talent;

enhanced cross-selling of our service lines and expertise to our
wider client base; and

+ investment in technology and processes 1o enhance working
practices and improve the seryice to our clients.

Our acquisition strategy is to larget value-accretive acquisitions
in any of the following market segments:

+ insobvency to increase market share;

property services to enhance expertise or geographical
coverage: and

complementary professicnal services businesses 1o continue
the development of the group and its service offering.

Board appointment

In December 2019, Peter Wallgvist joined the board 25 a nen-executive
director. Peter has spent his career in information technology and
in 2070 he co-founded and became CEQ at the Al company RAVN
Systerns, which was acquired in May 2017 by iManage, a leading
vendor of document management systerns for the legal and
professional services industries. Following the acquisition, Peter
served as VP of Strategy and Global Practice Director, specifically
to serve the professional services sector, until he left the

business in October 2019

Peter brings significant experience of the use of nformation
technology in professional services firms, in the context of
improving working practices and strategic business development,

People L
I would like to thank atl of our partners and staff for their valued
contribution to the business over the course of this financial yesr and

in particular their commitment and flexibility during the uncertain

period of recent months, when we have continued to provide

excellent service to our chents in very different circumstances.

Our success as a business is reliant on the quality of advice and

service which is delivered to cur clients by our people.

Current trading and outlook

Having started our new financial year six weeks into the lockdown,
we are currently seeing the unwinding of these restrictions and
resulting increases in economic activity

In the short term, the Government’s financial support measures have
helped many companies to continue trading despite the extreme
economic downturn caused by the lockdown. Nationally the
Insolvency Service reported that numbers of corporate insolvencies
dropped in the days immediately after the UK lockdown was applied,
and in most cases have not yet returned to pre-lockdown levels.
We anticipate thal as the support measures are removed in the
coming months there wilf be a significant increase in corporate
distress, which is likely to lead to increased insolvencies,

Our recovery and advisory teams start the financial year in a strong
position to defiver results ahead of last year. This reflects an increased
arder book of committed tulure insolvency revenue, together with

the benefit of cur recent acquisitions and organic investment, and

an expectation of an increase in market insclvency levels once the

shart-term suppart measures for the economy are removed.

Most of our property advisory and transactional service ines have
continued to operate remotely and activity levels have remained
robust. The insolvency-focussed areas of property and asset sales
are expected to benefit in line with any Increase in insolvencies in
due course. The service ines impacted by lockdown are beginning
to recover as the economy opens up, with Instruction levels having
improved through May, June and July to date; we anticipate further
recovery in performance over the remainder of the year. In addiuon,
we anticipate increased property auction lot numbers foilowing
the expected resumption of in-room auctions from autumn 2020,
As a result of the above factors, we anticipate that divisional
financial performance is likely to be below last year and weighted
towards the second half of the year.

Overall, we anticipate that the group's trading for the naw financial
year will have a greater weighting to the second haif than in recent
years and we will provide a further update on activity levels at the

time af aur annual general meeting In September.

With our mix of service lines and activities, combined with our
strong financial position, we are well placed to continue delivering
medium to long-term grewth. We continue 1o progress acquisition
and organic investment opportunities given our strong halance
sheet, cash-generative businesses and counter-cyclical focus.

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

z"' \ N /‘ 1/' ,I
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Business model

Our business is providing advice and transactional support to clients fo protect, enhance and
realise the value of their assets, businesses and investments throughout the economic cycle.

We do this with a team of 740 partners and staff operating within the local business
community from offices across the UK.

People © Anumber of the group’s
©activities are influenced
by the general economic
envircnment and are likely
to perform better in differing
economic climates

= Highly experienced and
qualified professionals

« Detailed market knowledge

- Entrepreneurial appreoach

Clients and relationships
» Diverse client base

» Enduring relationships
+ Trusted brands and reputation
Counter-cyclical activities (70%)

o Coroorare and personat insalvency e Distressen assetvalaat ar anc

Know how D Busimess and inanc al restructuring sales (nroperty. macnnery and
‘ . : \ - ciher Dusress 3ssets)
- Creative, problem-solving D e Debtacvisory '

expertise ¢ e Acceleratad corporate hnance * Specialsiinsurarce ara vacart

Droperty nsk management
= Established business practices

- Specialist services with barriers DL activibies
to entr : . .
y Corpotate finaree ~ Machirery ara other
Commercial proverty agnroy busimess assel sales
valzator of prope ly, CLSINesses, + Trarsport planrng ana design
Financial : machinery and cls ross assers Business sales agency

- Strong financial position

. Resilient financial performance

across the economic cycle Property adllions Due diligence and
. . : . e L A S AT Trarsaction sugpor:
Good operating margins : Commercial preps iy mar sgement acticn suppor
R lding consaltarcy [orensic accodning and

ITVRSTIZATIDNS

Profile reflects current group octivities inciuding annualised impact of acquisitions
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Our culture and values How we create value for our stakeholders

Values

- Trusted advisor to our clients
« Act with integrity

» Take pride in our advice and solutions
provided to clients

Governance
- Board oversight

= Highly experienced leadership team in
executive and senior management positions

Risk management
» Established business and risk
management processes

- Dedicated compliance functicns

- Business diversification to reduce
exposure 1o one activity or changes
in the business cycle

People

Provide an environment in which our peopie
+ are valued and enjoy working for the group
» can develop their talents and fulfil their potential

= share in corporate success through reward
packages including share incentive schemes

Clienis

Optimise value for clients through providing

= high quality service

- competitive and cost-effective charging structure

- innovative and entrepreneurial advice and soiutions

Sustainable increase in shareholder value through
growing earnings per share
paying dividends

delivering share price apprecation

Annual report and accounts 2020 Begbies Traynor Group plc 0



STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategy and objectives

The board believes the execution of this strategy will enhance shareholder value
through the delivery of strong, sustainable financial performance.

Organic growth will be targeted through: Our acquisition strategy is to target value-accretive acquisitions

] o in any of the following market segments:
e rerertior ang dovelapment of our cristing partters and employees.

‘ o NsOloney To Nt rarkor shara,
& CeCr TR GF row talent N ; TR Ale

» praparty sery ces [0 enbanie experise o1 gengrashral

e crharieaceoss-salling of o ir semvce ires ard exper! 58 .0 our
coverage, and

e pase: and

weddar
o complemeantary protessional services busitesses e conlinue

& uELITeNt TIRITNOINEY ANG Drocesses (o ennance warking ; ‘ o 5 fr
me gzvelopnent of the group and -1 service offering,

DU CRS INQIMLIoye [7e Sarvice 1 our ¢l ents,

Our vision

To be leaders in our chosen professional services giving outstanding advice and
transactional support to enable clients to protect, enhance and realise the value of
their assets, businesses and investments throughoul the economic cycle.

Our strategic objectives

Increase the scale and Deliver sustainable Maintain our strong Continue to ensure high
quality of our businesses profitable growth, financial pesiticn enabling standards of corporate
both organically and enabling increased the investment in and governance and
by acquisition shareholder value development of the group respensibility

and our people

Begbies Traynor Group plc Annual report and accounts 2020
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Key performance indicators

The board uses the following KPls to manage the performance of

the business and progress against our strategic objectives.

705
60.1
REVENUE (£m) 501 ag7 524
(2019 £60.1m) 1% 17 18 19

The measure
Resznuge generated from operating 305y 1 esin the
fhancial vear,

The target
To m<orease revenae by exLarong the sczle and guality
0F ZUT 0DATATING DA T0SS05 hath orzamcally and through

strateg ¢ acnysimens,

5.7
ADJUSTED BASIC EPS (p) o ¥
32 33
(2019: 4.8p) 16 17 18 19

The measure
Adjusted EPS s calculated by dividing acyLsied prefits
by rhe waignted average number of shares inssue

The target
To deliver grewsh im EPS 1o ne: ease sbarehalder ralue.

ADJUSTED PROFIT 9.2
BEFORE TAX (£m} 70

£ 9 2 45 49 >6

{2019 £7.0m) % 17 18 19

The measure

Profit oefore tax gareratoa py the business ~ the year,
adustes to excluse nems wingh anse due 1o acguising
wh ch are caarged W the ince e starement under IRS 3 srd
arenot rfluences ny Tro day-ro-day operations of e gro .

The target
"o reliver sastamable growth m adjested vrafit befero tax

104 10.3
NET DEBT {(£m) 75
6.0
£2.8m
(2019 £6.0m) 16 17 18 19

The measure
Borrow ngs net of cash balznces

The target

Te: malrtam a strong finaraal positor ath sufficient
Copatily nuur capital structure o enable continumg
vestment r the bus ness w.ththe ability 10 5t
PN OpROrTUNILeS anse,

Commentary on financial performance on these KPls and other
financial information is Included in the finance review on page 12
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Operating review

Ric Traynor

Executive chairman

Business recovery and financial advisory
EPURES IS F: LIPS £51 sl Ll

Revenue increased by 15% (8% organic) to £49.6 mullion (2019
£43.3 million), reflecting increased insolvency appointments, a
strong performance from our adwvisory team, and contributions
from current and prior year acquisitions.

Operating costs Increased by £3.6 million to £38.0 million (2019
£34.4 million) principaliy as a result of the addition of costs associated
with acquired businesses, together with organic investment and
increased people costs. However, these costs reduced as a percentage
of revenue, giving improved margins of 23.4% (2019: 20.6%).

Segmental profits” increased by 30% to £11.6 million (2019: £8.9 million).

Creis imnart

We quickly enabled our teams to work remotely and securely from
the commencement of lockdown, which enabled them to continue
to be appeinted an and progress cases, realise assets and
complete transactions as usual.

In the period immediately foliowing lockdown the number of new
insolvency cases reduced in line with market trends {as detailed
below) and are currently broadly in fine with appointment levels
from 12 months ago

- [ P ey
The number of people employed in the division has increasead to
394 as at 30 April 2020 from 364 at the start of the financial year.
This expansicn provides the capacity to dehver growth in revenue
and profits and we continue to cansider further recruitment to
continue to bulld capacity for long-term growth

Business recovery

We have continued to invest in the business recovery team during
the year through recruitment of fee earners, with a focus on business
development and increasing capacity, and have also appointed four
new partners: two of which were external appointments together
with two Internal promotions. Subsequent to the year end we have
pramated a further two fee earners to partner.

In October 2019, we acquired Alexander Lawson Jacobs (AL}, a
London-based insolvency and business recovery practice. The team

Begbies Traynor Group pl¢ Annual report and accounts 2020

of 24 partners and staff has been integrated into our existing strong
network of offices across London and the South East and made a
first-time contribution ahead of cur expectations

We have had a successful year of new insolvency appointments, which
has increased our order book of committed future insolvency revenue
by 23% to £19.0 millon (2019: £15.4 million). As a result of this, we have
also increased our market share to 10% (by volume) and we continue to
take the largest number of corporate insolvency appointments in the UK.

Financiail advisory

We have continued o invest in our advisory fee earner team with the
additon of five new partners, two of which were external appointments
and three internal promotions. We also completed additional corporate
finance transactions cormgared with the prier year.

In Septernber 2019, we acguired Regeneratus, an Exeter-based advisory
practice with particular expertise in restructuring, turnaround and legal
Issues. The team has joinad our existing South West practice, enhanang
the services and advice we can provide to our cients across the region.

L BRI
In the pericd prior to the COVID-12 outbreak, insclvency volumes?
nationally continued to increase, with the underlying number of
carporate insolvencies in calendar year 20319 increasing by 7% to

17,224 (2018: 16,105, 2017. 14,630).

EEL TS TR |

Nationally the Insolvency Service reported® that numbers of corporate
insclvencies dropped in the days immediately after the UK lockdown
was applied on 23 March, and in most cases have not yet returned
to pre-lockdown levels

They stated that this was likely to be a result of a combination of
factors including:

< HM Courts & Tribunals Service regucing the operaticnal running
of the courts and tribunals;

HMRC reducing their enforcement activity;

the Insolvency Service, insolvency practittoners and Companies
House having to adjust to new working arrangements; end

w

delays in documents being provided to Companies House by
insolvency practitioners.

We also believe that the current Government support initiatives
{ncluding the staff furlough arrangements and loan support
packages) are deferring some insolvency appointments.

Business recovery and financial advisory

REVENUE {£m) SEGMENTAL PROFITS (Em)

£.49.6m £11.6m

{2019 £43.3m) (2019: £8.9m}

49.6
433

383 8.9
7.6



Property advisory and
transactional services

sial - cmary
Revenue increased by 25% to £20.2 million {2019: £16.7 million),
reflecting the benefit of both current and prior year acquisitions.
Organic revenue was broadly in line with the pnior year with returns
from our growth initiatives offset by the anticipated reduction in
revenue following the completion of several property insolvencies
(which enhanced margins in the prior year).

Revenue in the final six weeks of the financial year was adversely
impacted by the COVID-19 lockdown by c.£1 million, which was
parually mitigated by £0.4 million of cost reductions.

Operating costs increased to £17.0 million (2015: £12.9 million),
principally due to costs assoaated with the acquired businesses

Segmental profits’ were £3.9 million (2019: £3.8 million}, with
operating margins of 18.5% (201% margin of 22.8% was enhanced
by revenue recognised on completion of property insolvencies

as referred to above). Operating margins were adversely impacted
by the lockdown by ¢.2%, with the underlying rate of . 20% in hne
with previous guidance of margins for the division.

e 18 kmioas
All service lines had performed strongly in the period up to the
commencement of lockdown in March and the majority continued
to operate remotely during lockdown:

Consultancy, commercial property agency and property
management teams cperated as normal from remote locations.

» The piant and machinery and praperty auction teams continued
to trade through our online channels {www.eddisons.com and
www.pugh-auctions.com}, completing transactions and realising
value for our clients together with asset realisations on our
group insolvency appeintments, albeit praperty auction |ot
numbers reduced as detailed in the operating review below.

» Commercial property agency and valuations together with business
sales agency experienced reduced activity levels in late March and
Aprit as a result of the lockdown. In addition, the Department for
Education delayed its awards under the condition improvement
fund (CIF), which had been anticipated in April 2020, resulting in a
deferral of revenue recognition to the new financial year for our
building consultancy team.

Property advisory and transactional services

REVENUE (£m} SEGMENTAL PROFITS (£m)
£20.0m £3.0m
(2019 £16.7m) (2019: £3.8m)

209 38 39
16,7 31

Annual report and accounts 2020 Beghies Traynor Group plc
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Our bullding consultancy team has continued to develop, notably
with further growth in the education and wider public sector. We
have continued to Invest In and grow the team and 1ts offering,
which included the recruitment of a Cambridge-based team in the
period. This has further developed our offering in Eastern England
following the acquisition of BSM in Apr) 2015, In the delayed
announcement of CIF project awards {as noted above) we increased
the funding secured for our clients to £28 million, up by 50%
compared to last year, which will generate project management
and consultancy fees for the group of £2 2 million in the new
financial year compared ta £1.3 million last year.

Revenue from the property valuation team grew in the year, reflecting
our continued recruitment of experienced surveyars, which has
improved our gecgraphical coverage and service to our clients.
The restrictions of lockdown impacted on activity lavels at the end
of the financial year, however, we are encouraged by the increase
in the level of new instructions we are receraing from lenders as
the UK exits its lockdown restrictians and anticipate that this will
progressively increase over the course of the new financial year.

The property transactional teams (agency and auctions) have
performed well In the year with an increase in agency revenue,
largely from the integration of the BSM team acquired in April 2019,

Commercial property auctions performed well in the period pre
lockdown with lot numbers and revenue broadly in line with the
prior year. We converted our usual in-room auctions to an online
auction from Aprit as a result of the lockdown restrictions and
have continued to offer this service to clients in the new financial
year, which has been a positive development enabling the team
to continue servicing clients’ requirements and realising value,
However, across the industry, lot numbers are currently ¢.60%
lower than normal levels. We currently anticipate that we will be
able resume In-room auctions from autumn 2020 which we
believe will result in a recovery in lot numbers

In October 2019, we acquired Ernest Wilson, a Leeds-based business
sales agent, which provides agency services for the sale of small
businesses across the UK. The team operate across a broad range
of sectors ranging from food outlets and convenience steres o
care homes, restaurants and hotels. The acquisition enhances cur
transactional support services and is also complementary te the
BTG Advisory and corporate finance offerings. Activity levels were
impacted during the lockdown period, but as with the property
valuations business, we are encouraged by the increase in transaction
levels we have experienced since the lockdown restrictions were
eased. We anticipate that transactional activity will progressively
increase over the course of the new financial year.,

The number of people employed in the division has increased to
281 as at 30 April 2020 from 245 at the start of the financial year.

Seenote 4

2 Source. the Insolvency servee quarterly statistics on the number of corporate
insalvenues in Englanc anc Wales on a seasonally adjustec basis, excluding the
ane-off effact of 1{2018 1,349, 2017 2 684) bulk insolvencies gs identif ed by
the Insolvercy Service

3 Saurce Insolvency Service Monthly insclvency statsucs, May and June 2020




STRATEGIC REPORT

Finance review

Nick Taylor

Group finance director

Financial summary

2020 2019

£000 £000
Revenue 70,503 60,058
Operating profit (before transaction
Costs and amortisation) 10,119 7,992
Finance costs (968) (1,006)
Adjusted profit before tax 9,151 6993
Transaction Costs (3,163) (1,283
Amortisation of intangible assets arising
Qn acquisitions (3.104) (2,360
Profit before tax 2,884 3,349
Tax {1,953) {1,102)
Profit for the year 931 2,247

IFRS 16 'Leases’ was adopted fram the start of the financial year
and all comparative figures have been restated in accordance
with the new standard. Further details are included below and
innote 2 ().

Operating result (before transaction costs

and amortisation)

Revenue in the year increased by £10.4 millicn te £70.5 million
(2019. £60.1 million), an averall increase of 17%, of which 5% was
organic and 12% was acquired’. Operating profit increased by 27%
to £10.1 million (2019: £8.0 million). These results include the impact
of the COVID-19 lockdown in the final six weeks of the financial year,
which iImpacted property services revenue by ¢.£1 miillion, partially
mitigated by £0.4 million of cost reductions.

The financial performance by operating segment (as detailed in the
operating review) 1s summarised in the table below:

Revenue (£'000)

2020 2019 growth
Business recovery and
financial adviscory 49,630 43,313 15%
Property advisory and
transactional services 20,873 16,745 25%
Shared and central costs — — —
Total 70,503 60,058 17%
Peofit (£'000)
2020 2019 growth
Business recovery and
financial advisory 11,588 8,889 30%
Froperty advisary and
transactional services 3,860 3,826 1%
Shared and central costs {5,329) 4,716) 13%
7999 27%

Total 10,118

Margins improved to 14.4% (2019: 13 3%), principally due to profit
growth and margin enhancement in businass recovery and financial
advisory, together with shared and central costs reducing as a
percentage of group revenue to 7.6% (2019: 7.5%). These margin
enhancements were partially offset by property advisory and
transactional services as detailed in the operating review.

Adjusted profit before tax increased by 31% to £3.2 milion
(2019 £7.0 million), as a result of the increased operating profits
detailed above, with finance costs in line with the prior year.

1 Partyear contribution from agquisiion~gin the gear and full year contribunion of prior yaar acquis tions
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Transaction costs

Transaction costs {as detailed In note 5 increased to £3.2 million
{2019 £1.3 miflion) as a resuit of iIncreased deemed remuneration
charges resulting from current and prior year acguisitions,

Earnings per share

Adjusted basic earnings per share? increased by 19% to 5.7p
{2019. 4.8p). Basit earnings per share decreased to 0.7p (2019: 2.0p).

Tax

The everall tax charge for the year was L2.0 million (2017: L1.1 million)

as detailed below:

2020
Profit Profit
before tax Tax after tax Effective
£000 £000 £000 rate
Adjustoad 9,151 (1,928) 7,223 21%
Transaction
costs {2,163} —_ (3,163} —_
Amortisation (3,104} 590 {2,514) 19%
Change in rate’ - (615) (615) —
Statutory 2,884 (1,953) 2931 68%
20°9
Profit Profit
before tax Tax after tax Effect've
£1000 £000 £000 rate
Adjusted 6,993 (1,551} 5442 22%
Transaction costs (1,283 — {1,283) —
Amortisation (2,361 449 {1,912) 19%
Statutory 3,348 {1,102} 2,247 33%

* Deferred tax charge of £0.6 milhon resulting from an increase
in deferred tax liabilities as a result of the UK corperation tax
rate now remaining at 19% rather than reducing to 17% as

previously announced.

7 Seereconchation nnote ©0

Partners and employees
The average number of full-time equivalent (FTE} partners and

staff working in the group increased over the year as a result of
acquisitions and organic investment

2020
Business Property

recovery advisory Shared

and and and

financial transactional support
advisory services teams Total
Partners o . GD
Staff 234 237 e 471
Fee earners 294 237 _ 531
Support teams 44 6 61 111
Total 336 4] 1 042

2019
Business Property

reCoveTy adwsory Shared

anc 3ndg and

“inangial transactional support
adwisory SerUICes teams Total
Partners 52 — — 52
Staff 217 173 — 390
Fee earners 269 173 — 442
Suppert teams 43 6 80 109
Total 312 551

179 60

The ratio of our support teams to fee earning partners and staff
improvad to 4.8 (2019: 4.1} reflecting the increased efficiency of
our operations as the group continues to grow, which has been

reflected in the improved operating margins in the year.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Finance review continued

{FRS 16

IFRS 16 'Leases’ was adopted frem the start of the financial year
and seeks 1o align the presentation of leased assets more closely
to owned assets. All comparative figures have been restated in
accordance with the new standard, which has been adopted

on a fully retrospective basis.

The adoption of IFRS 16 had the following impact on the group’s
financial results for the year ended 30 Apri 2019

+ reduction in profit before tax of £0.1 milllon (iIncrease in operating
profit of £0.4 million offset by an increase in finance costs of
£0.5 million);

reduction in net assets of £1.5 million at 30 April 2019; and

no impact on total cash flow; however net cash from operating
actwities increased by £2.1 million and net cash used in
financing activites increased by £2.1 million.

Further detalls are included in note 2 (t).

Acquisitions
During the year, the group completed three acgquisitions’

= Alexander Lawson Jacobs on 24 October 2019 for initial
consideration of £2.35 million (£2.1 million in cash and the 1ssue
of 296,195 new ordinary shares) with a maximum additicnal cash
payment of £4.0 million subject to financial performance in the
five year period following the acguisition. in its financial year
ended 30 June 2015, the business reported annual revenue of
£3.1 million and pre-tax profits of £0.9 million, when reported
on the same basis as the group.

+ Ernest Wilson on 18 October 2019 for initial consideration of
£4 0 million (£3.C millicn in cash and the issue of 1,163,874 new
ordinary shares) with a maximum additional cash payment of
£1.63 million subject to financial performance in the three year
period followng the acquisition. In its financial year ended
31 July 2018, the business reported annual revenue of £2.2 million
and pre-tax profits of £0.7 million, when reported on the same
pasis as the group

Regeneratus on 23 September 2019 for initial consideration of
£0.5 million {in cash) with a maximum additional cash payment
of £1.1 million subject to financial performance in the four year
period following the acquisition. In its financial year ended

31 March 2019, the business reported annual revenue of

£¢.6 miflion and pre-tax profits of £0.2 million, when reported
on the same basis as the group.

A proportion of the consideration payable for these acquisitions
reguires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed by
the selling shareholders. These amounts are accounted for as
deemed rernuneration and charged to the conschdated statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the service obligation.

The net cash outflow as a result of these acguisitions in the year
was £4.7 million, comprising the cash consideration of £5.6 million
{(including £4.2 million accounted for as deemed remuneration)
completion accounts payments of £2.5 million {including £0.9 million
accounted for as deemed remuneration) offset by cash acguired
of £3.4 million.

In addition, deferred consideration payments of £4.4 million
(including £3.7 million accounted for as deemed remuneration)
were made in the year.

The value of net assets acquired exceeds the accounting value of
consideration (as a result of the majority of consideration being
accounted for as deemed remuneration) and consequently a gain
of £2.2 million has been recogrised within transaction costs in
the year

Liquidity

The group 1s 1N a strong hinancial position At the year end the
group had cash balances of £7 2 million (2015: £4.0 million}
together with undrawn, committed borrowing facilities of
£15.0 million (2018 £15.0 million) providing significant liquidity
entering the new financial year.

Our borrowing facilities mature in August 2023 and comprise
a £25 million unsecured, committed revelving credit facility and
a £5 million uncommitted acquisition faciliy

Net debt at 30 April 2020 was £2 8 million (2019 £6.0 million),
represented by cash balances (as noted above) of £7.2 milhon
(2019 £4.0 million) net of drawn borrowing facilities of £10.0 mullion
{2019: £10.0 million) As a result of the reduced levels of debt
together with increased profits, our leverage? reduced to 0.3 times
(2019: 0 7 times). All bank covenants were comfortably met during
the year.

3 Calzulated as net debt to operaung profit (betore fransachon costs, amart sauon, geprecation on tangible assers, software amorusanon and after finance charge an lease labilit es)
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Cash flow

Net debt reduced by £3.2 million (2019: £1.5 millien) due to strong
levels of free cash flow of £7.7 million and net proceeds from the
share placing of £7.8 millon which funded acguisition and deferred
consideration payments of £9.1 million and dividends of £3.2 million

Cash flow in the year 1s summarised as follows:

2020 2018
£000 £000

Net cash from operating activities
(before deemed remuneration) 10,428 4,475
Capital expenditure {789) (1,000)
Capital element of lease payments (1,934) (2,148)
Free cash ftow 7,705 6,327
Net proceeds from share issues” 7,818 10
Acquisition payments {4,710} 1,167
Deferred consideration payments {4,390} {1,030}
Dividends {3.185) {2,649
1,491

Reduction In net debt 3,238
“ Share placing of 11,041,440 new ordinary shares completed on
26 July 2019.

Net assets

AL 30 April 2020 net assets were £65.6 million (2019 £58 1 million}
The movement in assets reflects an increase of £4.0 million, from
post-tax adjusted earnings of £7.2 million net of dividends of

£3.2 milhon; £9.8 million from the issue of new shares {resulting
from the placing and acquisition cansideration in the periodj;
offset by the post-tax impact of acquisition-related transaction
and amorusation costs of £6.3 million.

Going concern

The group 15 10 a strong financial position and has significant liguidity
as detalled above, The majority of the group’s service lines have
operated remotely during the period of the COVID-19 lockdown.

In carrying out their duties In respect of going concern, the
directors have completed a review of the group's financial
forecasts for a period exceeding 12 months from the date of
approving these financial statements. This review included
sensitivity analysis and stress tests to determine the potential
impact on the group of reasonably possible downside scenarios,
including those arising from the COVID-19 pandemic and the
resultant increase in risks for the group. Under all modelled
scenarios, the group's banking facilities were sufficient and all
associated covenant measures were forecast to be met.

As such, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company and the group have adeguate rescurces to continue

in operatonal existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the financial mformation in these financial statements 1S prepared
on the going cencern basis.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal risks and uncertainties

The operations of the group and the implementation of the group’s strategy involve
a number of risks and uncertainties, the principal of which are described below.

The group's strategic objectives (see page 8) include increasing the
scabe and quality of our businesses and the delivery of sustainable
profitable growth. The board encourages an appetite of measured
risk taking in the delivery of these objectives, which is balanced by
a process of risk identification, evaluation and management

The board has ultimate responsibility for the group's risk management
process and is supported in this by the audit committee, The executive
directors and aperational management teams are responsible for
the identification and evaluation of risks and the subsequent
implementation of specific risk management activities.

COVID-19

The directors have carried out a robust assessment of the materal
and emerging risks facing the group. Qutlined below are the current
principal risks and uncertainties faced by the operations of the
group and the implementation of its strategy. The list is not
exhaustive and other, as yet unidentified, factors may have an
adverse effect. The group’s controls are designed to manage
rather than eliminate risk and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk

The COVID-19 outbreak and subsequent
actions by autharities to contral the outbreak
has implications both for our people ard

our cperalions, together with an increase n
other key business risks, notably operational
gearing, l'quidity risk and business contnuity.

Business continuity

Mitigating activities

Our top priority Is tre health, safety and well-being of our
colleagues. We have the ability for the majority of our employees
to work remotely and securely, enabling us ta meet the
Governmert's recommendations on working practices

The mitigation of other principal risks impacted by the
COVID-19 outbireak are detalled below.

Change inrisk

NEW

Risk

Significant non-IT events may impact on our
service to clients and access to operating
locations with a potential adverse effect on
operational performance and reputatior,

Operational gearing

Mitigating activities

We have business continuity plans in place across the business
which include the ability to work frem alternate operating
locations. In the case of tho COVID-19 operating restrictions, the
majority of our teams have successfully worked from home.

Change inrisk

NEW

Risk

The business I1s operationally geared with

a high proporuon of salary and property
costs, which cannot be ‘'mmediately vared
Conseguently, the group's profitability 1s
liable to short-term fluctuations aependent
on activity levels

Liquidity risk

Mitigating activities

This risk 1s managed through flexing our resource levels,
where possible, to alhign with current and anticipated levels of Ao
activity, together with the controt of other discretionary items

of expenditure. A prudent level of spare capacity is retained (o

facilitate peaks in actmty

Change in risk

Risk

The group's ability to generate cash fromits
Irsclvency appaointments is usually ~ehant
on asset realisations. A deterioration in
realisations in the short term could reduce
the group's cperating cash generation and
ircrease its financing requirements.

Mitigating activities

The group monitors its risk of a shortage in funds through
regular cash management anc forecasting and ensuring
sJitable headroom within its banking facilities.

Change in risk

-~

The group’s abjective is to maintain a balance between contiruity
of funding and flexibility through the use of 1its commutted banking
facilities, together with bank overdrafts and loans, finance leases

and hire purchase contracts If required.

o
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Marketplace

Risk

The group’s markets are susceptible
10 Macroeconomic movements, such
as interest rates, GDP changes and
indebradness levels.

The group operates in a highly
competitive market and is reliant
on the flow of new assignments

Reliance on key personnel

Mitigating activities Change in risk
The group's service lines have differing exposure to the
MACroeconomIc env ronment as detailed in the business model O

on page 6 providing mitigation of this risk at a consolidated level.

Ths risk is managed through a consistent effort 'n marketing

and sellirg actraty and maintaining strong relationshups with key <
work providers, including financial institutions, investors and

other professional intermedianes.

Risk

The business 1s dependent uoon the
professional development, recrutment
and retention of partners and staff.

Legal and regulation

Mitigating activities Change in risk
The group manages the risk of high staff turnover through
attention to human rescurce 1ssues and the monitonng of 4

rerruneration levels against the wider market, including
long-term incentive arrangements.

Risk

The group operates in regulated markets.
Failure to comply with, or changes in,
regulaticn or legislation may have an adverse
impact on the activities of the business.

In the ordinary course of business, certain
aspects of the group's services are opiion
based and may be subject to challenge.

Mitigating activities Change in risk
To ensure compliance with refevant legislation in periorming
regulated activities, the group has dedicated compliance O

functions which maintain procedures and policies in ine wath
current legislation.

Where appropriate, the groun will seek third party professienal
corroboration. In addition, the group has appropriate insurance <
policies in place

Failure or interruption in IT systems

Risk

A maior fallure in the group's [T systems may
result in either a loss or corruption of data
or an interruption In client service, which
may have a corsequential Impact on our
reputation and profitability.

There 15 a risk that an attack on our IT
systamns by a malicious individual or group
may be successful and impact an the
avallability of these systemns.

Mitigating activities Changein risk
Specific off-site back-up and resilience reguirements have
been built into our IT systems which have been set up, as far O

as reasonably practicable, 1o prevent unauthorisec access and
mitigate the impact and likelihcod of a mator IT failure or cyber
attack. The group 1s Cyber Essentials Plus accredited.

The group has disaster recovery plans in place to cover residual
risks which cannot be mitigated.

The group Is constantly reviewing its processes and resilience in
this area due to the increasing threat landscape.

Annual report and accounts 2020 Begbies Traynor Group plc




STRATEGIC REPORT

Stakeholder engagement

Section 172 statement

The following disclosure forms the directors’ statement required under section 414CZA of the Companies Act 2006 on how the
directors have had regard to the matters set out in section 172 (1) {a) L (f) in performing their duties. The board recognises that
engagement with its stakeholders 1s fundamental to the long-term success of the company and considers the views and interests
of all key stakehoiders in its decision making.

Who are our key How do we engage with them?

stakeholders and why
we focus on them

Our people Employee engagement and interaction is encouraged through a variety of means including:

The business is dependent on the corporate intranets Including a group-wide commurycation tool BTG insight;
prafessional development, recruitment
and retent.on of our fughly expenenced
partners ang staff who are responsiple staff one-to-one appraisals throughout the year.
for delivering a high quality service
to our clients.

team meetings, and

As aresult of the period of remote waorking during the COVID outhreak we accelerated the roli out of
Microsaft Teams to enable continued communication ard interaction across the business and

The directars recognise that the between collcagues.

quality, motivation and commitment
of our people 1s fundamental to the
group’s success. We believe in the value of developing future talent within the group. We continue to invest in our
people through providing financial support far employees who are undertaking professional trainirg
to gain the qualifications required to progress with their careers Inaddition, for our qualifiec staff
we have the BTG Academy programme Lo assist in developing the range of skills required to
undertake more senior roles in the arganisation.

The group's firancial performance is communicated on a six menthly casis by the executsve chairman

Frployees can share in the group's success through membership of our sharesave
{save-as-you-earn} scheme.

We have appointed a third party agency to conduct a group-wide employee engagement survey
which will be completed in autumn 2020.

Shareholders The executive chairman and group finance director hz?vg primary responsibility for investor relations
e ) (IR} and lead a regular programme of engagement. This includes presentations foliowing the

Access to capital is of vital annourcement of the financial results, whicn are also published or the group’s IR website to ensure

importance to the long-term they can be accessec by all sharehelders. The IR programme maintains ongoing communication

success of our business. with sharehalders and helps to ensure that the board is aware of sharehoiders’ views,

Through our engagement activities, I'he board also rormally receives feedback twice each year from its corporate brokers on investors’

we AIM 1o Obtain INVestor Supportfor g the market's perceptions of the company.

our strategic objectives and our

execution of them. In addition, the company makes announcements using the regulatory news service (RNS)
throughout the “inancial year so that all investors are aware of current developments and financial

We believe that delivering value for performance of the group.

our shareholders ensures that the
business continues to be successfyl The annual general meeting of the company, which is generally attended by all directors, provides an

in the long term and contindes 1o opportunity for all shareholders to ask questions and to meet the directors.
deliver value for all our stakeholders

Clients The group has a diverse chient base across its service lines. Qur client facing teams are in continuous
cantact with their cliert base and have responsibility for both unaerstanding their expectations anc
Our chents are key to the success of managing the delivery of our service

our business.

Community and Our offices operate in the heart of the local business communities and engage in numerous

: activities in suppart of local chanties together with financial support and sponsorship initiatives.
environment
We believe that through our
community engagement activities we
can make a beneficial Impact on the we also have a number of cmployees on apprenticeship schemes, which provide an opportunity for
areas where our people live anawork  the individuals to gain valuable work experience together with training and qualfications

We aim to provide opportunities for people to gain valuable work experience, which can enhance employmert
prospects, We do this through various means including work experience and university placerents.

In many circurnstances this can lead to full-time employment opportunities w'th the group.

The group's impact on the environment and our plans te improve this are detailed in the directors’ report.
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The principal decisicns made by the board during the year are summarised below: L

Principal decisions

Considerations by the board

made in the year

COVID-19
response

Detailed in chairman’s
statement on page 4.

Share placing

Detailed in finance
review on page 12,

Acquisitions
Detailed in operating
review and finance review
on pages 10 and 12,

Governance

Board appeintment detailed
IN corparate governance
statement on page 22

Approval

The implications resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic had a potential impact across all stakeholders, Ourimitial
response was focussed on the health, safety and well-being of cur people ard following HM Government's advice on
working practices

The resolutions made by the board which impacted on our key stakeholders included

- all employees pald in ine with contractual terms for the two months of the lockdown period (April-May 2020)
regardless of ability to complete work with the restrictions in place;

no claim made under the Governmert's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme as a result of the grouo's overall
financial performance in the year and strong finanaial position;

supplier payments made in hre with normal contractual terms;

internim dividend paic and final drvidend recommended in line with our progressive dividend policy, having
considered the group’s lguidity and the balanced treatment of all other stakehelders 'nresponse to the
COVID-19 crisis;

far certain employees in our cychcal activities where we anticipate a lower level of activity and pricing for
the foreseeable future, we have adjusted the cost base for the new year through a reduction in team size
or remuneration basis, and

execulve remuneration was considered (as detalled in the remuneration report on page 26} in the context of
group financial performarce in the year, financial cutlook for the new financial year and the balanced
treatment of other stakeholders in response to COVID-19

The stare placing was completed on a non pre-emptive basis, The board agreed that this was in the best
interests of all shareholders, as the funds raised enabled the group to accelerate acquisition opporeunites
in line with our st-ategic chjectives.

Having completed the share placing noted above the group completed three acquisitions in the year.
The transactions were in line with our acquisition strategy which the board beheve increases value for
all stakeholders and is for the long-term benefit of the group.

The board believes that itis important for it to contain the night mix o skills and experience in order to deliver
1ts strategy for tne benefit of all sta<eholders. Peter Waligvist was appointed to the board to deepen the
knowledge and understanding of IT at board level and in particular IT application within the group.

The strategic report on pages 1to 19 was approved by the board and signed on its behalf by

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

/o

Nick Taylor

Group fiance director
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board of directors

Executive directors

Ric Traynor . Experience
© Richas been an Insolvency practitioner since gqualifying
¢ asachartered accountant with Arthur Andersen in 1984
Appointment date: ¢ He established Traynor & Co. in 1989 which, following the
©acquisition of Begbies London in 1997, became Begbies Traynor.

Executive chairman

May 2004
Ric has focussed on the development of the business,
inciuding the group’s successful intreduction to AIM in 2004,
and on practce management. He continues to lead the
business and remamns a major shareholder.

Nick Taylor . Experience

Nick was appointed to the board as group finance

¢ directorin 2010, having joined the group as financial
Appointment date: i controfler in 2007. He is a chartered accountant who
December 2010 ¢ qualified with KPMG and previcusly held senior finance
roles in United Utilities PLC and Vertex Data Science
Limited, the business process outsourcer.

Group finance director

Mark Fry Experience
: Mark was appeinted tc the board in 2011, having joined the
‘ © group in 2005 following an acquisition. He led our London and
recovery and advisory © South East region prior to his board appointment and plays
©ooa key role in developing the group's advisory practice.

Head of business

Appeintment date: :
july 2011 Mark acts as an insolvency practitioner, has been appointed

¢ onnumerous cemplex and high-profile assignments, andis a

former president of the Insolvency Practitioners Association.
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Non-executive directors

John May

Non-executive director

Appeintment date;
Qctober 2007

Graham McInnes
Non-executive director

Appointment date:
September 2004

Mark Stupples

Non-executive director

Appointment date:
July 2017

Peter Wallqvist

Non-executive director

Appointment date:
December 2019

Experience

john was appointed to the board in 2007 &s a non-executive
director. He was previously an executive director of
Caledonia Investments plc and worked for the Hambros L—
Group for over 20 years, where he was an executive director

of Hambros Bank and joint managing director of Hambro

Countrywide John has extensive non-executive experience,

having been a director of more than 40 listed and private

companies operating both in the UK and globally.

Experience

Graham was appaointed to the board in 2004, initially as group
finance director and subsequently as corporale development
directar. In 2012, Graham became a non-executive director
He has heid a number of senior finance positions including
corporate finance partner at Spicer and Oppenhaim (now part
of Deloitte) and finance director of Enterprise plc, in addition
to developing his own corporate finance boutique in the 1990s.
Granam s also a director of Newton Technology Group ple,

a group specialising in the engineering technology sector.

Experience

Mark was appointed to the board in 2017 as & non-executive
director. He has significant property services experience as a
result of his senior roles in major firms, including King Sturge
as UK managing partner, when he negotiated the sale of the
business to JLL. Fellowing the acquisition, Mark was appointed
as JLUs UK chief operating officer until leaving the business in
December 2016. During this time, he completed a number of
UK acquisitions. Mark now runs his own consultancy business
focussing on strategy and change in professional services
businesses, and Is the chairman of Jones Lang LaSalle
Pension Trustees Limited.

Experience

Peter was appointed 1o the board in December 2019 as a
non-executive director. Peter has spent his career in information
technology In 2010, he co-founded and became chief executive
officer at the Al company RAVN Systems which delivered digital
transformation initiatives in the professional services industry.
RAVN Systems was acquired by iManage, a leading vendor of
document and email management systems for the legal and
professional services industries in 2017, Following the acquisition,
Peter served as VP of strategy and global pracuce director for
IManage, until he left the business in October 2019,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Chairman’s introduction

Ric Traynor

Executive chairman

The board is cammitted to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. As chairman, 1tis my role to ensure that these standards
are promated by the board and to ensure that the group s managed in
the best interests of shareholders and our broader stakeholder group.

We recognise that a positive culture, together with a robust
approach to governance, 1s key to the success of the organisation
As a professional services consultancy the group’s services are
regulated by externally governed codes of practice and ethical
behaviour. These regulatory professional standards are reinforced
by the board which sets the culture of the group in promoting
entrepreneunal growth against the background of scund
regulatory compliance and ethical standards and a measured
approach to risk taking.

o6

The board is committed to
maintaining high standards
of governance”

©
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We seek to be a trusted advisor to all of our clients, to act with
integrity at all imes and to take pride in the advice and solutions
we provide.

We have a clear approach to governance and rnisk management
with a highly experienced leadership team n executive and senior
management positions together with robust comphance and
governance procadures. In December 2019, Peter Wallgvist joined
the board as a non-executive director. Peter brings significant
experience of the use of informatian technalogy in professional
services firms, in the context of improving working practices and
strategic business development.

We are committed to a culture which ensures that our people
enjoy working for the group, can develop their talents and fulfil
their potential with us.

In the following sections we have provided details on our approach
to governance and apphication of the QCA Code, including reports
from the audit and remuneration committees, | believe that the
framework provided by the QCA Code cantributes to our ability

to deliver long-term shareholder value and assists the board in
managing the business for all of its stakeholders, whilst maintaining
a flexible, efficient and effective management frameawaork within

an entrepreneurial environment.

Further detail on cur cornpliance with the QCA Code can be found
on our website at https://www begbies-traynorgroup.com/
investor-relations/corporate-governance.

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman



Corporate governance

Overview
The group has established specitic committees and imglemented
certan policies, to ensure that:

it1s led by an effective board which is collectively responsible for
creating and sustaining shareholder value through management
of the business;

the board and its committees have the appropriate balance of
skills, experience, Independence, and knowledge of the group
to enable them to discharge their respective duties

and respensibilities effectively;

- the board have a formal and transparent arrangement for
considering how 1o apply the corporate reporung, risk management
and internal contral prinaples and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the group's auditors; and

there 15 a dislogue with shareholders based on the mutual
understanding of objectives.

In addition, the group has adopted polictes in relation to anti-correption
and bribery; ant-money laundering and economic crime; whistleblowing;
health and safety; IT, communications and systems; and social
media, so that all aspects of the group are run in a robust and
responsible way,

Responsibilities of the board
The board is respensible for creating and sustaning sharehalder
value through management of the business. It does this by:

» setting the strategy and direction of the company,

= maintaining appropriate controls to ensure the effective
operation of the company;

approving revenue and capital budgets and plans;

approving financial statements, rmaterial agreements and
NON-recurring projects;

determining the financial structure of the company Including
treasury and dividend policy;

averseeing control, audit and risk management; and
- selling and monitoring remuneration policies,

Spedcific responsibilities have been delegated to commuttees of the
board, being the audit and remuneration committees. The terms of
reference for these committees are available on the group's website.

In the absence of a formal nominations committee the board 1s
responsible for ensuring that it retains an appropriate composition
and balance of skills and expertise together with considering
relevant succession.

Operational management of the group’s respective divisions

is delegated by the board to two prinaipal operating boards
{business recovery and advisory services and property services)
which comprise relevant members of the group's executive

and non-executive directors, together with senior partners

and managers from the respective divisions.

statement

Board members

Itis important that the board contains the right mix of skills and
experience in order to deliver the strategy of the group. As such,
the board 1s comprised of the executive chairman, two other
executive directors and four non-executive directors.

Role of the executive chairman

Ric Traynor, who established the business and led the group’s
ntroduction to AIM, fulfils the role of executive chairman being
responsible for the workings and leadership of the board together
with managing the business with the support of the other
executive directors.

whilst the QCA Code requires the chairman to have adequate
separation from the day to day business, the board believes the
current role 1s appropriate and in the best interests of the group.
In recognition of this non-compliance with the QCA Code the board
has a majority of nen-executive directors and Graham Mclrnes, one
of Its non-executive directors, acts as the senior independent director,

Executive directors

The group has two executive directors, in addition to the executive
chairman, who are responsible for managing the delivery of the
business plans within the strategy set by the board.

Non-executive directors

The group has four non-executive directors {NEDs'). The NEDs role is
to provide oversight and scrutiny of the performance of the executive
directors, helping the business to develop, communicate and exacule
its agreed strategy within the defined risk management framework.

The NEDs are expected to attend all board rmeetings, any committee
meetings of which they are a member and the annual general meeting,
In addition, Mark Stupples is the non-executive chairman of the
property services operating board. NEDs are expected to dedicate
sufficient ime to the group's affairs to enable them to fulfil their
duties as directors.

The board considers that the four NEDs are independent of
managernent and have no business or other relationship which
could interfere materially with the exercise of their judgement.

Company secretary

The company secretary provides advice and guidance to the extent
required by the board on the legal and regulatory environment
and assists the chairman in preparing for and running effective
board meetings, including the timely dissemination of appropriate
information. All directors have access to the company secretary
and all group records. Each director is authorised to take external
advice at the expense of the company in support of his duties.

The company secretary also acts as the hink between the company
and sharehelders on matters of governance and investor relations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement continued

Election of directors

Each director serves on the board until the annual general meating
following his ar her election or appointment where the director
must stand for re-election. in accordance with the group's articles
of association one third of the directors are re-elected on an
annual basis, with those directors who have been in office the
longest being subject to this requirement.

In addition, in accordance with the QCA Code, any Independent
ron-executive directors who have served for more than nine years
will stand for re-election at each AGM.

Board evaluation

The most recent evaluation of board performance was conducted
in April 2019 facilitated by the company secretary, which involved
the completion of a questionnaire by each director focussed on
the ten principles of the QCA Code. During the year the board has
focussed on the foilowing areas for development which were
agreed as follows:

- Astrategy review was completed at the December 2019 board
meeting which reiterated the group's long-term vision and
strategic objectives.

Anncreased focus aninvestor relations which included
presentations and meetings with non-shareholders and a new
investor relations website. Following this, we were pleased to
welcome a number of new financial institutions as shareholders
inour placing in July 2018,

The group's CSRinitiatives are being reviewed as an ongoing
project including areas for environmental efficiency across our
office network.

The board will complete a further evaluation of its performance
in the new financial year.

Board meetings

The full board meets formally on a quarterly basis and infarmaily
where relevant throughout the year Agendas for these meetings
formalise the matters reserved for decision by the board with
papers arculated in advance for consideration and comment.
Meetings are structured to allow for the open discussion and
debate of the key issues.

Attendance at board and committee meetings during the financial
year s shown in the table below:

Auait Remuneration
Board meet\ngs commitiee ."ﬂEEIH"IgS Lomirmrtee meemgs

eligible eligibie eligible
Dhrecor attenced to attend attended (o attend attended Lo atiend
Ric Traynor 6 & —1 —? —2 —2
Nick Taylor 6 6 —3 —3 — —
Mark Fry B & — — — —
John May 6 & 2 2
Graham Mclnnes 5 & 4 4 2 2
Mark Stupples 5] & — — — —
Peter Wallgvist 2 2 — — — —

1 The executive chairman attendec three audit committee meetings by mwtation
2 The execat ve chairman atlended two remuneraticn commitiee meenngs by invitatior

3 Thegroup f nanze d rector attended four audit comrrictee meetings by Invitat on
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Audit committee report

Graham McInnes

Chairman of the audit committee

On behalf of the board | am pieased to present the audit
committee report for the year ended 30 April 2020,

Members of the audit committee

The audit committee has two members, each of whom s an
independent, non-executive director. | am the chairman of the
committee and John May is the other current member of the
committee, The group company secretary is at the disposal

of the commuttee to advise and assist both of the members.

The executive chairman, the group finance director and a
representative of the group's external auditors are permitted
to attend meetings of the committee by invitation only. The
committee meets at least three times a year, In accardance with
its terms of reference.

The committee’s terms of reference are available on the group's website,

Its principal responsibilities are to review and discuss governance,
financial reporting and internal control and risk management.

Duties
During the year the committee discharged its responsibilities by:

approving the external auditar's plan for the audit of the
group's annual financizl statements, including key audit matters,
key risks, confirmation of auditor independence and terms of
cngagement and audit fees;

© reviewing the group's draft annual report and accounts and
the external auditor's detailed audit completion report including
the consideration of key audit matters and risks;

reviewing the group’s half year and full year resulls announcements;

reviewing a report by management refating to the adoption of
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’in this financiaj year. Following discussions with
management and the external auditor the comrnittee spproved
the adoption and disclosures of this revised accounting pohicy,

reviewing the performance of the external auditor,

appointment of a group internal audit manager 1o enhance
the group’s control environment; and

reviewing the group's risk managemeant process including the
group’s key risks and miugaucns.

Role of the external auditor

The committee manitors the relaticnship with the external auditor,
BDO, Lo ensure that auditor independence and objectivity are
maintained. BDO has been the company's auditor since 2017,
which followed a tender process. The committee will keep under
review the need for a further external tender. Any instruction for
BDO to provide non-audif services to the group must be approved
in advance by the committee, Fees payable to BDO for non-audit
services provided during the year were £37,500. —

Having reviewed the auditor's independence and performance,
the commitlee has concluded that these are effective and
recommends that BDO be reappointed at the next AGM.

Audit process

The auditor prepares an annual planning repart for consideration by
the committee, which details areas of audit focus and anticipated
key audit risks, together with the anticipated level of materiality.
This is reviewed and approved by the committee Following the
audit the auditor presented 1ts findings to the committee. No
significant areas of concern were raised by the external auditor,

Internal audit

Having considered the increase in size and camplexity of the group
in recent years, the committee decided o appoint an internal audit
manager in the year. The initial area of focus has been a review of
the group’s risk and internal control framewaork together with initial
testing of key controls, In future years the committee wilf agree
areas of focus for review and testing as part of a programme of
internal audit reviews,

Internal controls and risk management

The systerns of internal control and risk management are the ultimate
responsibility of the board, which sets and reviews appropriate
policies. The systems are designed to provide reascnable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstaternent or lass. Managers
are delegated the tasks of implementation and maintenance of
systerns in accordance with those policies and the identification,
evaluauon, management and reporting of risk and control issues.
Controls and processes are reviewed on a periedic basis by the
group’s finance, compliance and internal audit teams with any
issues and recommendations reported te the audit committee

Budgets are produced annually and key performance targets
within them are set by the board. Performance against those
budgets is regularly reviewed and variances are investigated
and acted upon by members of the board and both head office
and divisional managers.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the group, together
with mitigating activities, are disclosed in the strategic reporton
pages 16 and 17.

Graham MclInnes
Chairman of the audit committee

Lt
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Remuneration committee report

John May

Chairman of the
remuneration committee

I am pleased to present this remuneration report, which sets
out the remuneration policy and the remuneration paid to the
directors for the year.

Members of the remuneration committee

The rermuneration committee has two members, each of whom

15 an independent, non-executive director. | am the chairman of
the committee and Graham Mcinnes is the other current member
of the committee The group company secretary is at the disposal
of the committee to advise and assist both of the members.

The executive chairman is invited to attend meetings of the
committee for discussion on executive remuneration matters
save for those relating to himself. The committee meets at least
once a year, In accordance wath its terms of reference.

The members of the remuneraticn commitiee have nominated
Mark Stupples, one of the group’s non-executive directors, to be
an additional member of the remuneration committee and this
appointment was approved by the board of directors in July 2020,
increasing the number of members to three.

The committee’s terms of reference are available on the group's
website. [ts principal responsitilities are to determine the remuneraton
payable to the executive directors and approve any management
long-term incentive and share-based payment schemes.

Policy
The remuneration policy of the group is driven by our approach
to align the best interests of shareholders and managament.

The committee looks to set remuneration for executive directors
at appropriate market levels, with reference to the roles and
responsibilities of those directors. Incentive arrangements which
provide appropriate reward and incentive are implemented and
measured against key performance criteria designed to promote
the bestinterests of shareholders.
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Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration arrangements for Ric Traynor and Nick Taylor
consist of a basic salary or directors’ fees and fixed profit share,
together with an annual bonus. In addition, they receive income
protection insurance, private medical insurance and the provision
of a company car or cash allowance, Nick Tayler also receives death
in service benefits, During the year, the fixed element of the
remuneration was reviewed for the first time since 2016 and was
increased by 10% with effect from 1 July 20195.

The executive bonus scheme, which is applicable to Ric Traynor
and Nick Taylor, pays a percentage of salary/fixed profit share
based on maintaining or growing the group’s adjusted earnings per
share in the year, with a maximum bonus of 100% of base salary
payable for earnings growth of at teast 40%. The level of bonus
payable in the year is disclosed in the table of directors’ emaoluments.

Mark Fry is a member of Begbies Traynor (London) LLP {'the LLP7),
a subsidiary of the group. During the financal year, he received a
fully variable profit share, determined as a proportion of the profits
of the LLP which is in Iine with the comparative period In addition
Mark Fry receives a fixed director’s fee and the provision of a
company car.

None of the directors participate in the group’s defined contribution
pension scheme.

COVID-19 considerations on directors’ remuneration
I light of the COVID-18 emergency the committee has considered
the level and basis of executive remuneration for the year being
reported and the new financial year As noted in the sirategic review,
the group has performed well in the financial year and in spite of the
adverse impact of the changes in operating conditions resulting
from the pandemic the group is in a strong financial position

The directors’ remuneration {as laid out in the tables below)
contains a significant weighting to variable remuneration for the
executive directars and the quantum reflects the strong financial
performance of the group in recent years.

As part of the group’s COVID-19 response (as {aid out in the
strategic report). all employees were paid in line with contractual
terms for the two months of the lockdown period (April-May 2020)
regardless of ability to complete work with the restrictions in place:
the group has not made any applications under the Government's
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme; and the group has maintained
its dividend policy. These decisions have been taken with due
regard to the group's wider stakeholders and are possible due

to the our strong financial position.

The committee have therefore determined that the remuneration
policies for directors remain appropnate and have approved
bonuses/variable pay as detailed In the table opposite.



Long-term incentive plans

The share-based incentive scheme which has been put in place for some of the executive directors seeks to incentivise the relevant
exgutive directors (0 enhance shareholder value through growing the group's share price. Details of the group's share-based incentive
schemes are set out on page 64 with a proportion of such awards also being conditional on delivering sustained growth in earnings and
total shareholder return. No additional awards under this scheme were made in the year.

Non-executive directors
Non-executive directors’ remuneration is determined by the board.

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’
fres and prof't varahle Benefits 2020 F xed Variabie
sharefsalary prof tshare Borus ir kind total pay pay
Name of direcror £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Executive
Ric Traynor 322,433 — 226,000 28,332 576,815 350,815 226,000
Nick Taylor 215,833 — 140,000 1,042 356,875 216,875 140,000
Mark Fry 15,000 595,008 -— 30,000 640,008 45,000 595,008
Neon-executive
John May 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000 —
Graham Mcinnes 40,000 — — — 40,000 41,000 —
Mark Stupples 40,000 — — — 40,600 40,000 —
Peter Wallgvist? 20,000 — — — 20,000 20,000 s
Aggregate emoluments 693,316 595,008 366,000 59,374 1,713,698 752,650 961,008
1 D rectors fees *rom date of appointment an 10 December 2079
Directors’
faes and proft Variable Benefits 2019 Fixed Variable
share/ssalary preftshare Bonus rkind total pay Day

hame of director £ £ £ E £ £ £
Executive
Ric Traynor 323,212 — 225,000 26,683 574,995 349,995 225,000
Nick Taylor 200,000 — 55,000 1183 296,183 201,183 95,600
Mark Fry 15,000 958,920 — 30,000 1,003,920 45,000 958,920
Non-executive
John May 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000 —
Graham Mclnnes 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000 —
Mark Stupples 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000 —
Aggregate emoluments 658,312 958,920 320,000 57,886 1,995,098 716,178 1,278,920
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Remuneration committee report continued

Directors’ share options
Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the vafue of options to acquire ordinary shares in the company
granted to or held by the directors. Details of share option awards for directors who served during the year are as follows:

Exergise
MNurrber at Grantad exercsed Expired Number at price Earliest ZXpIrY
Name of director 1 Way 2019 inyear nyear inyear 30 April 2020 {pence} CXETCISE Cale date
Mark Fry 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 367 30 April 2016 25 October 2023
MNick Taylor 250,000 — — — 250,000 51.0 25 July 2017 25 July 2024

500,000 — — — 500,000 631 31 Cctober 2020 31 Oclober 2028

The market price of the company’s shares at the end of the financial year was 104 pence and the range of market prices during the year
was 60 pence te 105 pence.

Detais of share options granted by the company at 30 April 2020 are given in note 22. None of the terms and conditions of the share
options were varied in the year. No options were exercised in the year

Directors’ interests
The directors who held office at 30 Apnil 2020 had the following interests in the shares of the group:

30 April 2020 1 May 2079
Name ot directors Description of shares number % number %
Ric Traynar Ordinary shares 27,178,980 21.26 27178,980 2377
Nick Taylor Crdinary shares 117,540 0.09 117,540 010
Mark Fry Ordinary shares 734,390 0.57 127,466 0.11
John May Ordinary shares 309,036 0.24 276,574 0.24
Graham Mclnnes Ordinary shares 917,432 0.72 917432 030
Mark Stupples Ordinary shares 30,727 0.02 30,727 0.03
Peter Wallgvist Ordinary shares 30,000 0.02 — —

No changes took place in the interests of directors between 30 April 2020 and 20 July 2020,

John May
Chairman of the remuneration committee

o
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the
group, together with the financial statements and auditor's report
for the year ended 30 April 2020. The chairman’s statement,
strategic report, cirectors’ remuneration report and corpoerate
governance statement form part of the directors’ report and
areincorporated into it by cross-reference.

The stakeholder engagement section of the strategic report
contains information in respect of the group’s key stakeholders
and business relationships, Including employees, clients,
sharehalders, and the cemmunity and environment.

Directors
The names and brief biographical details of the directors are
shown on page 20.

Risks and uncertainties
The principal business nisks and uncertainties to which the company
Is exposed are detalled on page 16 of the strategic report

Dividends

The directors recommend a final dividend of 1.9 pence (2019: 1.8 pence
per ordinary share) to be paid on 5 November 2020 to shareholders
on the register on 9 Octeber 2020. This, together with the interim
dividend of 0.9 pence paid on 11 May 2020 (2019, 0.8 pence),
makes a total dividend of 2.8 pence for the year {2019, 2 6 pence}.

Substantial shareholdings

On 6 July 2020, the company had been notified, in accordance with
sections 791 to 828 of the Companies Act 2006, of the following
interests in the ordinary share capital of the company:

Percentage
Name of Folder Number held
Hof Hoorneman Bankiers 8,621,418 752
OVMK Vermogensbeheer 7380113 563
Amati Global Investors 6,888,178 537
Close Brothers Asset Management 6,852,949 5.36

Other than the above holdings and those of the directors
(see page 78}, the board 1s not aware of any beneficial heldings
in excess of 3% of the issued share capitat of the cormpany.

Financial instruments
The financial risk management objectives and pohcies of the group
are shown in note 20.

Capital structure
Details of the issued share capital, together with details of the
movemants in share capital during the year. are shown in note 21

Political donations
The company made no pehtical donations dunng the year

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always
fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant
concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled,
every effortis made to ensure that their employment with the

group centinues and that appropriate traineng is arranged. 1t 1s
the policy of the group that the training, career development
and promoticn of disabled persons should, as far as possible,
be identical to that of other employees.

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions report
The following table provides detadls of the group's GHG emissions
for the year

Fnergy
Tornesof  consumed
CCe (hWF)
Combustion of gas and consumption of fuel
for the purposes of transport 401 1,618,000
Purchase of electricity for our own use 216 846,000
Total emissions above per full-time cquivalent
member of staff

0.96 3,838
The emission factors used were from the UK Gavernment’s GHG
Conversicn Factors for Company Reporting 2020

During the year the group engaged third party consultants to
complete its ESOS report. As a result of the operating restrictions
imposed by the Government lockdown the consultants have been
unable to complete the report. The repart will be completed in the
new financial year and the group will review the recommendations
contained in the report to identify potential actions to reduce
GHG emissions.

Employees

The policy of the group is to recruit, promote, train and develop
its people by reference to their skills, abilities and other attributes
of value ta their role in the business. The group considers itself
to be an equal opportunities employer.

For details on employee engagement refer to stakehelder
engagement in the strategic report on page 18.

Auditor
Each of the directors at the date of approval of this annual report
confirms that'

so far as the director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit
information (as defined in the Companies Act 2006) of which
the company’s auditor is unaware; and

the director has taken all the steps that he cught to have taken
as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware
of that information.

In accordance with section 489 of the Companies Act 2006,
a resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting
that BDO LLP be reappointed as auditors.

Approved by the board of directors and signed on tehalf of
the board

John Humphrey
Company secretary

R PN
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are respensible for preparing the annual repart
and the finangial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Caompany law requires the directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected
to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted

by the European Union and the cormnpany financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable iaw).
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the
profit or loss of the group for that period The directors are also
reguired to prepare financiat statements in accordance with the
rules of the London Stock Exchange for companies trading
securities an AlM.

in preparing these financal statements, the directors are
reguired ta:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropnate to presume that the company will
continue in business.
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The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reascenable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and otherirregularities.

Website publication

The directars are responsible for ensuring the annual repoert and
the financial statements are rade available on a website, Financial
statements are published on the company's website in accordance
with legislation 1in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from
legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity

of the company’s website 15 the responsibility of the directors.

The directors’ responsibility aiso extends to the ongoing integrity
of the financial statements contained therein.
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Independent auditor’s report

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Beghbies Traynor Group plc (the ‘Parent Company’} and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’} for the
year ended 30 Aprii 2020 which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, the consolidated balarice sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the Company balance sheet, the Company statement of
changes in equity and notes ta the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied i the preparation of the Group financial staterments 1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The financiol Reporting Standard in the United Kingdom and Repubiic of Irefand (United Kingdom I
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 30 April 2020
and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

+ the Parent Company financial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicatile law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed enutes, and we have fulfiiled our cther
ethical responsihilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respact of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK} require us to report to you where;

- the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 1s not appropriate; or

» the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about
the Group’s or the Parent Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
marnths from the date when the financial statements are authonsed for issue,

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matlers that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance n our audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of matenal misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified,
including those which had the greatest effect on. the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts
of the engagement team These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report continued

Key audit matters contirued

Lt

Carrying value of goodwill

How we addressed the key audit matter in the audit

The Group’s goodwill measurement and
valuation policy is set out in note 2 of these
financial statements, w th a summary of
goodwill set out on page 56.

In accordance with |1AS 36, an annual
impairment review of goodwi!l {see note 11}
15 reguired at each year end

The impairment assessment is pe-formed by
management based on comparing the value
in use ta the carrying value of goodwill. This
calculation involves a number of management
Judgements and estimates, and as suchk holds
the potential for bias or error

Furthermore, the £50.2 million goodwsll ‘igure
held in the balance sheet at the year end 1s
highly material and there is a risk that this value
may not be supported. Hence we treated this

a key audit matter.

Management prepared impairment calculations
tased on the forecasts of the insolvency
cash-generating Lt {CGU), to which all the
goodwill belongs. They also applied sensitivity
aralysis (o the assumptions used in the
calculations, as set outin note 11, Management's
assessment found significant headroom anc
concluded ro impairment was required.

Revenue and unbilled

We reviewed the methocology applied by management to ensure consistency with orior
year calculations.

We reviewed the allocation of goodwill to ensare it was correctly allocated to the
msolvency CGU.

We reviewed the assumptiors used within the forecast figures for the insolvency CGU. We
compared these to the actual results of this CGU N the financial year ended 30 April 2020,
mvestigating and challenging management on any unusual or significant movements
expected going forward based on our understanding of the business. We alsc checked
for consistency with the forecasts usec in the going concern assessment

- We reviewed the key assumptions made within the calculatior. The key assumptions arc

considered to be the weighted average cost of capital (WACC), the growth rate applied

1o the calculauons and the economic cycles assumed in the model {based on historical
trends) as this drives volumes forecast for the insclvency practice, which is counter-cychcal
o the general economic envirgnment in the UK,

We engaged the use of an internal auditor's expert to consider the approp-iateness of
management's WACC estimate, and whether it was reasonable for use in this calculation.

- We tested the sensitivity cafculations and appled our own sensitivity analysis to the key

assumptions to consider the headroom available.

Key observations:

As a result of performing the above procedures we did not identify any material
misstatements in respect of goodwill

How we addressed the key audit matter in the audit

income recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policy 1s set
outin note 2 of these financial statements.

In ine with auditing standards, there s a
presumed significant risk of fraud in relation to
revenue recognition, We have considered the
application of the Group revenue recognition
policies and determined that the s'gnificant risk
in the per'od 1s that of the overstatement of
unbilled income recorded using stage of
completion calculauons at year end through
cither the manipulation of provisiens for
unrecaoverable amaounts or cut-off of employee
costs incurred around year end, from which
unbilled income balances are calculated. As
noted in the accounting policies (note 2 (j),
judgements are formed over a large portfolio
of cases meaning individual judgements are
Not material; however, as a result of the large
number of insclvency cases being handled oy
the Group, the aggregate balance of unbilled
incorne is significant. As a result of the
significant level of estimation involved in

the balance there Is potential for matenal
rrisstatement and signif cant audit work was
performed in this area.

B

We tested the operating effectiveness of a key control to ensure that there s sufficient
challenge placed by the group finance team en monthly unbilled income estimates and
judgements, includirg provisions Group finance review and challenge that key estimates
and provis ons against unbilled iIncome are appropriately calculated, each month, by
individual insolvency practitioners and fee earners, We Fave attended a sample of monthly
finance review meeatings and observed the level of challenge and follow-up of individual
cases, which provides assurance over the internat control In place.

A sample of year end unbilled income balances was tested through questionnarres being
issued to the fee earners and then reviewing Lheir responses and associated evidence,
e.g. creditors’ resolutions, property vaiJations and balances held in bank accounts, against
the year end position set aut. This incluaed questicns on the impact of COVID-19 on
realisations and asset values held for the case.

We reperformed the stage of completion calculations as at year end for a sample of cases
and robustly challenged the judgements and estimartes made by management in relation
to the status of cases by lookng at tha costs to complete for each of the cases. We also
challenged recoverability of the fees by looking at the value of assets held within each of
the case which supported fee estimate.

We alsg reviewed the stage of completion estimates made in the pricr year for a sample of
cases and assessed their accuracy based on actual outcomes.

We performed cut-off testing around the year end for employee costs to ensure revenue
had been recognised in the correct period

- We performed a high level review of the ageing of year end unbilled income, to evaluate

movements in againg from the prior year and confirm the ageing profite is in line with our
understanding of the business,

Key observation:

As a result of performing the above procedures we did not ident’fy any mate-ial
misstatements in respect of revenue recognit'on or unbilled income.
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Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both i planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. For planning,
we consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions of
reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements. In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that
any misstatements exceed materiality, we use a lower materiality level, performance materiality, to determine the extent of testing needed.

Importantly, misstatermnents below these {evels will not necessanly be evaluated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of identified
misstatements, and the particular circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.

Performance materiality has been set at 70% of materiality. This has been assessed on criteria such as historic adjustment levels, complexity
and the controls of the Group.

Based on our professicnal judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a who'e as follows:

Group materiality £450,000 {(2019: £350,000)
Group performance materiality £315,000 (2019 £245,000)
Parent Company materiality £337,500 (2019: £260,000)

Parent Company performance materiality £236,250(2019: £182,000)

Basis for Group materiality 5% of adjusted profit befare tax
Basis for Parent Company materiality Based on net assets and restricted to 75% of Group materiality
Rationale for the benchmark adopted Begbies Traynor Group plc is AlM Nisted, with profit making intentions and

significant investors external to the Group. Adjusted profit is considered
to be the key KPI for the Group and as such a profit-based materialty
basis is considered approprate. We adjusted for amaortisation and
transaction costs as these costs do not specifically relate to any
underlying cperating activities. The adjusted figure gives a more
appropriate basis in line with a benchmark used for business decision
making and used by the investor/shareholder community.

For each significant component inthe Group audit we allocated a materality within the range of £390,000 to £50,000 (2019: £260.000 to £36,000),

We agreed with the audit committee that we would report to the committee all individual audit differences identified during the course of
our audit in excess of £18,000 (2019: £14,000). We also agreed to report differences below these thresholds that, in our view, warranted
reporting on gualitative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Qur Group audit was scoped by obtzining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and
assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level.

For the five significant components we identified, we performed a full scope audit of the complete finandial informarion. For the
remaining companents, we performed analytical reviews and other audit procedures on specific accounts within that compenent that we
considered had the potential for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in the financial statements, either because of the size of
these accounts or their risk profile.

Audits of the compaonents were performed at a matenality ievel calculated by reference to a proportion of Group materiality appropriate
to the relative scale of the business concerned.

The group audit team conducted the audit of all components of the business and no component auditors were used during the audit process.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial stalements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a matenal misstatement cof the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report continued

R s SO ST DR OA VI S

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In aur opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the finandial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements,; and

the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared In accordance with applicable legal requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its envircnment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

+ the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,; or
= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enabte the preparation of finarcial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directars either intend to liguidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
buttc dose

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material rmisstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinian. Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance,
but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the finanaal statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website: www.frc.arg uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report 1s made solely to the Parent Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006,
Qur auditwork has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those matters we are required (o state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsipility to
anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company’s members as a body, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Mark Langford (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Leeds, United Kingdom

S .o e D

BDO LLP is a limited liabllity partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

P I O

Restated
2020 2019
Notes £'000 £000
Revenue 3 70,503 60,058
Direct costs (40,317) (34,246)
Gross profit 30,186 25,812
Other operating income 363 393
Administrative expenses (26,697) (21,850)
Operating profit {before amortisation and transaction costs) 10,119 7,999
Transaction costs 5 (3,163) 1,283)
Amartisation of intang ble assets arising on acquisitions (3,104) {2,367)
Operating profit 3,852 4,355
Finance costs 7 {968) (1,006)
Profit before tax 2,884 3,349
Tax 8 (1,853) {1.102)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 931 2,247
Earnings per share
Basic 10 0.7 pence 2.0 pence
Diluted 10 0.7 pence 1.9 pence

The profit, comprehensive income and earnings per share is attributable to equity holders of the parent.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

: Consblidate‘d statement of changes in equity

s oee sy DAy

Capital
Snare Share Merger redemption Retained Total
capital premium reserve FEServe £arrings equity
L £000 £000 £0600 £000 £'0900 £'000

At 1 May 2018 as previously reported 5,508 22,789 20,248 304 8.852 57,701
Restatement (see note 2 (1)) — (603) — — (B55) {1,458)
At1 May 2018 as restated 5,508 22,186 20,248 304 7,997 56,243
Total comprehensive income for the year
as restated — e — — 2,247 2,247
Dividends — — — — {2,649) (2,649)
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — 99 29
Shares 1ssued as consideration for
acquisitions 74 — 834 — — 308
Shares issued as deferred consideration 93 - 1,107 — — 1,200
SIP shares rssued i 7 — — — 8
Shares issued for share-based payments 43 — — — (43) —
AT 30 April 2019 5,719 22193 22,189 304 7,651 58,056
Total comprehensive income for the year — — - — 9371 931
Dividends — — — — (3.185) {3,185)
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — 102 102
Shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 73 - 1177 — — 1,250
Shares issued as deferred consideration 38 — 567 — — 599
Placing shares issued 552 7.266 — — — 7,318
Shares issued for share-based payments 4 — — — 4) —
At 30 April 2020 6,386 29,459 23,927 304 5,495 65,571

Adescription of the nature and purpose of each reserve is included within note 29.
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Consolidated balance sheet

Restated Restated
2020 2019 2018
Notes £000 £:000 £000
Mon-current assets
Intangible assets N 59,437 59,392 59,061
Property, plant and equipment 12 1,800 1,766 1512
Right of use assets 13 7,021 7,399 7,210
Trade and other receivahles 14 4,586 3,220 1,75%
72,844 71777 69,542
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 36,460 32,332 28,816
Cash and cash equivalents 7,247 4,009 3,518
43,707 36,341 32,334
Tatal assets 116,551 108,118 101,876
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 (22,223} (22,048) (16,381}
Current tax liabilities (1,378} {1.976) (1,548}
Lease labilities 16 (2,232) (1,927) (2147}
Provisions 18 (883) {478) (576)
(27,216} {26,429) (20,652
Net current assets 16,491 2,912 11,682
Non-current liahilities
Trade and other payables - — (1,093)
Borrowings 17 (10,000) (10,000) (11,000
Lease liabilities 16 (6,137) (6,667) 6,079
Provisions i8 {1,935) (2,070 (2,187}
Deferred tax 19 (5,692) (4,896) (4,622}
(23,764) {23,633) {24,981)
Total liahilities (50,980) {(50,062) (45,633)
Net assets 65,571 58,056 56,243
Equity
Share capital 21 6,386 5,719 5,508
Share premium 28,459 22,193 22,186
Merger reserve 23,927 22,189 20,248
Capital redemption reserve 304 304 304
Retained earnings 5,495 7,651 7947
Equity attributable to owners of the company 65,571 58,056 56,243

The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group pic, registered number 5120043, were approved by the board of directors
and authorised for issue on 20 July 2020 They were signed on its behalf by

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor

Executive chairman Group finance director
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated cash flow statement

Restated
2020 2019
Nates £000 £'000
Cash flows from aperating activities
Cash generated by operations 24 4,734 8,016
Income taxes paid {2,186) {1,362)
Interest paid on borrowings (436) (481
Interest paid on lease habilities {454) {460)
Net cash from operating activities (before deemed remuneration payments) 10,428 9,475
Deemed remuneration payments (8,770) (3,772)
Net cash from operating activities 1,658 5,703
Investing activities
Purchase of intangible fixed assets 17 (103) {216}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (686) (784)
Acquisition of businesses (2,970) (1.778)
Deferred consideration payments (720) —
Cash acquired in acquisition of usinesses 23 3,360 3,353
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (1,119) 575
Financing activities
Dividends paid 9 {3,185) {2,645}
Praceeds onissue of shares 7.818 10
Capital element of lease payments (1,934) (2,148}
Repayment of loans e (1,000
Net cash generated from (used in} financing activities 2,699 (5,787}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,238 491
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,009 3,518

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

1. General information
Beghies Traynor Group plc s a company incerporated in England and wales under the Companies Act 2006 The address of the registered
office is 340 Deansgate, Manchester M3 4LY.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary econemic environment in which
the group operates

2. Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set cut below

e Be s ot 0 suniim

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable UK law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS')
as adopted by the European Union (‘EU"}, including International Accounting Standards (1AS7) and Interpretations issued by the [FRS
Interpretatians Commitlee.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and all accounting policies have been applied consistently
throughout the current and preceding year, apart from those affected by the implementation of {FRS 16 ‘Leases’ as noted in {1} below.

Going concern

The group’s business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position, are set out in the
chairman's statement and strategic report. The financial position of the group, the principal nsks and uncertainties, its cash flows,
liguidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the strategic report.

Furthermore, notes 17 and 20 to the financial statements include full details of the group's borrowings, in addition to the group's objactives
and policies for managing its capital, its financial risk management objectives and its exposures to credit, interest rate and liquidity risk.

The group has principal committed banking facilities of £25 million, of which £2.8 million was utillised (£10 million drawn less £7.2 mullion
of cash balances) at 30 April 2020.

In carrying out their duties in respect of going cancern, the directors have completed a review of the group's current financial position
and cash flow forecasts for a period exceeding 12 months from the date of signing these financial statements. This review included
sensitivity analysis (o determine the potential impact on the group of reasonably possible downside scenarios, including those arising
from the COVID-19 pandemic

After making enguiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group have adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they conunue te adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual
report and accounts.

Adjusted performance measures

Management believes that adjusted performance measures provide meaningful information to the users of the accounts on the operating
performance of the business and are the performance measures used by the board to monitor operational performance and determine
remuneration levels (induding bonuses) for executives and senior management. Accordingly, adjusted measures of operating profit, profit
before tax, net cash from operating activities and earnings per share exclude, where applicable, transaction costs, amaortisaticn of intangible
assets arising on acquisitions and related tax effects on these items. These terms are not defined terms under IFRSs and may therefore not
be comparable with similarly titlad profit measures reported by other companies. They are not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to,
GAAP measures.

The items excluded from adjusted results are those which arise due to acquisitions and are charged to the consolidated staterment
of comprehensive income in accordance with IFRS 3. They are not influenced by the day-to-day operations of the group.

AL I SR - e
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group plc and entities contrelled by
Beghies Traynor Group plc (its subsidiaries, which include limited liability partnerships). Control is achieved if ali three of the following
are achieved: power over the investee, exposure to variable returns for the investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power to
affect those variable returns.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The results of entities acquired or disposed of during the year are ncluded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of dispesal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, the accounts of the subsidiaries are adjusted to conform to the group's accounting palicies. Al intra-group transactions,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

N P
The acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses is accounted for using the acguisition method.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued
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2. Accounting policies contirued
EREES L SREE Ll PELRVR
Measurement of consideration
The consideration for each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the group in exchange for control of the acguiree,

Contingent consideration is initially measured at fair value at the date of the business combination. Any subsequent adjustment ta this
fair value {such as meeting an earnings target), where the consideration is payable in cash, s recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive Income.

Deemed remuneration
In accordance with the IFRS Interpretations Committee's interpretation of paragraph BSS of IFRS 3, the cost of the business combination
excludes consideration which requires past-acquisition service cbligations to be performed by the selling shareholfders

These amounts are accounted for as deemed remuneration and are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the service obligation.

Payments paid in advance of the service cbligation being delivered are recognised as an asset within trade and other receivables.
The balance is disclosed within current assets for service obligations inless than 12 months and in non-current assets for service
obligations after more than 12 months. In the event that the service obligations have been delivered in advance of the payment
being made, the resultant liability is recagnised within trade and other payables

Fair value assessment

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilites and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. Where the fair value of the assets and liabilities at acquisition cannot be determined reliably in the initial
accounting, these values are considered (o be provisional for a pericd of 12 months from the date of acquisition. if additicnal information
relating to the condition of these assets and liabilities at the acquisition date is cbtained within this period, then the provisional values are
adjusted retrospectively. This includes the restatement of comparative information for prior penods.

Gain on acquisition or goodwill

A gain on acquisition arises where the group's inerest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabiliues and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination. This typically arises where there are post-acquisition service obligations in relation
to the contractual consideration payments which results in these payments being excluded from consideration under [FRS 3 A gain on
acquisition is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income

Goodwlll arises where the cost of the business combination exceeds the group’s Interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. This is recognised as an asset and is subject to impairment tests as noted in 2 (d)

Acquisition costs
Acquisition costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of compgrehensive income as incurred and separately disclosed duce to
the nature of this expense.

e by
Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidation is recognised as an asset.

Foliowing imual recogrition, goodwill s subject to impairment reviews, at least annually, and measured at cost less accumulatad impairment
losses. Any Impairment s recognised immediately in the conselidated statement of comprehensive income and is not subsequently reversed.

On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goedwill is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acguisitions before the date of the group’s transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts,
subject to being tested for impairment at that date and at least annually thereafter.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are measured initially at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The carrying amount is reduced by any provisicn for impairment where necessary.

On a business combination, as well as recording separable intangible assets already recognised in the balance sheet of the acquired
entity at their fair value, identifiable intangible assets that are separatle or arise from contractual or other fegal rights are also included
in the acquisition balance sheet at fair value.

Amortisation is charged within administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income so as to wnte off the
cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, on the following basis.

Software 10%-33% of cost

Intangible assets arising on acquisitions 10%-50% of fair value at acquisition
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2. Accounting policies cortinued

All assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreaiation Is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, on the foliowing basis:

Camputers 20%-33% of cost

Motor vehicles 25% on a reducing balance basis
Office equipment 15%-25% of cost

Leasehold improvements evenly over period of lease

The gain or loss arising an the disposal of an assat s determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the assel and s recognised within profit or loss for the period.

- IRE AR P M ange
At each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset |15
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment lass, Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent
from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to wiich the asset belongs

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value In use. in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amaount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)1s esumared to be less than its carrying ameunt, the carrying amount of
the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating umt) s increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been racognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit} in prior years. Areversal of an
impairment loss Is recognised as income immediately.

= Toied T Tl R
Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognised in the group’s balance sheet when the group becomes a party o the contractual
provisions of the instrument,

Cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash in hand and on-demand deposits and other short-term highly hquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other receivables (excluding unbilled income and deemed remuneration}
Trade receivables are initially recogrised at their transaction price, and then subsequently stated at amortised cost less impairment
provision for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

The group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses (ECLs") under IFRS 9, which permits the use of the
Iifetime expected loss provision for trade receivables, The group makes specific provisions for ifetime expected credit losses against
trade receivables where additional information is known regarding the recoverability of those balances. For the remaining trade receivables
balances, the group has established an ECL model using provision matrices for recognising ECLs on 1ts trade receivables, based on its
historical credit loss experience over a two year period, adjusted {where appropniate) for forward-looking factors.

Trade receivables are written off where there s no expectation of recovery.

Other recervables are stated at their fair value.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially stated at their fair value and subsequently at amortised cost

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.
An eguity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Equity instruments
Equity Instruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

2. Accounting policies contirued
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Bank borrowings
Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs. Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted far on an amertised cost basis to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive mcome using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the

extent that they are not settled in the period In which they arise.

“rovision
Pravisions are recognised when the group has a present fegal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the group will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

AR
The group enters into lease agreements for the use of builldings, motor vehicles and office equipment

Leases are accounted for at inception by recognising a right of use asset, lease liability and dilapidations liability.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of fixed payments under the lease. IFRS 16 requires payments to be discounted using the
interest rate imphcitin the lease. Where that rate cannot be readily determined, which 1s generally the case for the group’s leases, the group's
incremental borrowing rate s used, being the rate that the group would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right of use asset In a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

The Initial value of the night of use asset is the present value of the fixed payments under the lease, any imitial direct costs and an estmate
of dilapidation costs under the terms of the lease. Depreciation of the right of use asset I1s recogpised 1n the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
assel's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Lease liabilities increase as a result of the finance cost charged o the income statement over the lease period, so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period, and the liabilities are reduced for lease
payments made. Lease payments are allocated between principal and interest cost.

The group has taken advantage of the exemptions available under IFRS 16 not to apply the recognition and requirements of the standard
to {eases with a term of 12 months or less, or leases for which the underlying asset value is low, Far these leases, a charge 1s recognised
in the Income statement based on straight-line recognition of the lease payments payable on each lease, after adjustment for lease
incentives received,

The group sometimes negotiates break clauses in its property leases, with the typical factor in deciding to negotiate a break clause being
the length of the lease term. The carrying amounts of lease liabilities are not reduced by payments that would be avoded fram exercising
brezk clauses because, as at the point of lease inception, it was considered reascnably certain that the group would not exercise its right
to exercise any break in the lease.

S ‘,’}E’{iﬂh

Revenue Is recognised when contrel of a service or product provided by the group 1s transferred Lo the customer, in line with the group's
performance obligations in the contract, and at an amount reflecting the consideration the group expects to receve in exchange for the
service or product.

There are no significant judgernents required in determining the group's performance obligations in its contracts as the significant
majority of contracts contain only one performance obligation

The group recognises revenue from the following activities:
insolvency and advisory services;
corperate finance services;

= commercial property management;

- property consultancy services; and

commercial property and other business asset disposals.

fnsolvency and advisory services

For the group’s formal insolvency appointments and other advisory engagements, where rermuneration is typically determined based
on hours worked by professional partners and staff, the group transfers control of its services over time and recognises revenue over
tme if the group:

provides services for which it has no alternative use or means of deriving value; and
has an enforceable nght to payment for its performance completed to date, and for formal insolvency appointments has approval
from creditors 1o draw fees which will be paid from asset realisations,
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2. Accounting policies continued
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Insolvency and advisory services continued
On certain contracts the group may not have enforceable rights to payment at the start of the contract and revenue will not be recognised
until these rights are in place This may occur on insolvency eppointments where the recovery of assets is subject to litigation or the realisation
of assets s uncertain,

Progress on each assignment is measured using an input method based on costs incurred to date as a percentage of total anticipated costs,

In determining the amount of revenue and the related balance sheet items (such as trade receivables, unbilled income and deferred
income) to recognise in the period, management is required to form a judgement on each individual contract of the total expected fees
and total anticipated costs.

These estimates and judgements may change over time as the engagement completes and this will be recognised in the cansolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the revision becomes known. These judgements are formed over a large
portfolio of contracts and are therefore unlikely to be individually material.

invoices on formal insalvency appointments are generally raised having achieved approval from creditors to draw fees Thisis typically
settied on a timely basis from case funds. On advisory engagements, invoices are generaliy raised in line with contract terms.

Where revenue 1s recognised In advance of the invoice being raised (in line with the recognition criteria above) this 1s disclosed as unbilied
income within trade and other receivables, Where an invoice 1s raised In advance of the revenue being recognised, this is disclosed as
deferred income within trade and other payables.

Corporate finance services
Generally, revenue is recognised at a point in time on the date of completion of the transaction or when unconditional contracts have been
exchanged. Fees are typically a fixed percentage of the transaction value and are invoiced to the client (and typically payable) on completion.

Commercial property management

The group manages commercial properues for owners. The primary performance obligation relates to the ongoing management of the
property and revenue is recognised over time on a straight-line basis as the services are performed in line with the contract terms. The
majority of customers are invoiced quarterly in advance, with a deferred income balance recognised for services still to be delivered.

Property consultancy services

The group provides a wide range of professional property services including valuation, building consultancy, planning and insurance
broking. Revenue will typically be recognised at a point in time following satisfaction of the performance obligation(s} in the contract,
at which point the group 1s typically entitled to invoice the customer, and payment will be due.

Commercial property and other business asset disposals

The group is appointed to sell propertics, businesses, machinery and other business assets for clients through physical and online
auctions, commercial property agency and business sales agency. Generally, revenue is recognised at a point in time on the date

of campletion of the asset sale or when unconditional contracts for the sale have been exchanged. Fees are typically a fixed percentage
of the transaction value and are invoiced to the client (and typically payable) on completion

Financing component

In ine with IFRS 15, the group does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the etfects of a significant financing component
if the group expects, at contract Inception, that the period between the group transferring its product or services to a customer and when
the customer pays wili be one year or less.

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

: SEEeT- 0 A - T
The group operates & defined contribution scheme in the United Kingdom for all qualifying employees. The costs of the pension funding
borne by the group are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an expense as they fall due.

$123 11 aRREEAT T TS TN LR

3 2

Equity-settiad share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The far value excludes
the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set out in note 22.

The fair valugs detarmined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensad on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the group's estimate of equity instruments that wili eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the group revises
Its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected 1o vest as a result of the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the ariginal estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

2. Accounting policies contir ed

Dwidends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of intenim dividends to equity sharehelders, this 1s when they
are paid to shareholders. In the case of final dividends, this is when approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current tax

Current tax 1s hased on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net prefit as reported in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group's lability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between tha carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted far using the balance
sheet liability mathod. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition {other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probabie
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset (o be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the Lax rates Lhat are expected to apply in the period when the Lability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome except when 1t relates to items charged or
credited to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with In equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 3 legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes by the same taxation authonty and the group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Cans e Coe s Travooar L o o B put o .
The I\ablhty to the group under this option {as detailed in note 28) is charged to the comsohdated statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the contractual ablgation, and included as a transaction cost within administrative expenses,

accal s g judge ents o gt T s ardion W ertaimt
In the process of applymg the group’s accounting policies, the group is reqwred to make certam estimates, Judgements and assumpticns
that it believes are reasonable based upen the information available. These cstimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods presented.

On an ongoing hasis, the group evaluates its estimates using historical expertence, consultation with experts and other methods
considered reasonable in the particular circumstances. Actual results may differ from the estimates, the effect of which is recognised
in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known.

The group believes that the estimates and judgements in relation to goodwill have the mast significant impact on the annual results
under IFRS as set out below.

Goodwill

The group records all assets and liabilities acguired in business combinations, including goadwill, at fair value. Goodwill is not amortised
but s subject, at a minimum, to annual tests for impairment. The nitial goodwill recorded and subsequent impairment raviéw require
management to make subjective judgements concerning the value in use of cash-generating units. This requires an estimate of the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate to calculate present vaiue Details of the
assumptions made are provided in note 11.

: ‘ AR T T NN AT
Intanglb}e assetsina busmess combination

On the acquisition of a business the identifiable intangible assets may include brands, customer relationships, customer contracts,

order backlogs and websites. The fair value of these assets is determined by discounting estimated future net cash flows generated by
the asset where no active market for the assets exists. The use of different assumptions for the expectations of future cash flows and the
discount rate would change the valuation of the intangible assets, and the estimate of expected contingent consideration payable affects
the resulting gain on acquisition recognised. Details inrelation to current year acquisitions are in note 23,
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2. Accounting policies continued
s I I
International Financial Reporting Standards
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant standards and interpretations were inissue but not yet
effective and have not been applied in these financial statements:

Féfective dare
International Financial Reporting Standards (1FRSs’) iyear end corrmencding on or after)

Definition of a business {(Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’) 1 January 2020

Amendments to IAS 1 and 1AS 8 ‘Definition of Material’ 1 January 2020

Other new amended standards and interpretations issued by the IASB that apply to the financial statements do not impact the group as
they are either not relevant to the group's activities or require accounting which is consistent with the group’s current accounting policies,

at oy . Cae ol o e
Adoption of new accounting standards
The group has adopted {FRS 16 ‘Leases’ with effect from the start of this financial year, which replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and its related
interpretations. IFRS 16 seeks to align the presentation of leased assets more closely to owned assets. Under |AS 17 all the group's leases
where the group 1s a lessee were operating leases. The group recognised a lease charge in the income statement based on straight-line
recogrition of the lease payments payable on each lease, after adjustment for lease incentives received.

IFRS 16 reguires lessees to recognise a right of use asset and lease liability at lease inception, with liabilities recognised at present value
The initial value of the right of use asset 1s the present value of the fixed payments under the fease, any initial direct costs and an estimate
of dilapidation costs under the terms of the lease.

In the INncome statement, the operating lease charge as recognised under [AS 17 1s replaced with a straight-hne depreciation charge on
the right of use asset and an interest cost on the lease liability. This therefore results in an increase in operating profit, which is reported
prior to interest charges, The depreciation on the asset is charged evenly over the term of the lease, however, the interest charge will be
higher In the initial years of a lease and reduce over time. In aggregate over the lease term the charge to profit will be the same under
both accounting standards.

The cash flow statement will reflect the lease payments previously included within cash generated by operations as interest payments
{within net cash from operating activities) and repayments of obligations under leases (within net cash used in financing activities). There
Is no impact on total cash flow by year from adoption of the standard.

The group has taken advantage of the exemptions available under IFRS 16 not to apply the recognition and requirements of the standard
to leases with a term of 12 months or less, or leases for which the underlying asset value s low. The recognition of these exempted leases
will therefore continue unchanged - a charge will be recognised in the Income statement based on straight-line recognition of the lease
payments payable on each lease, after adjustment for lease incentives received.

As part of the adoption of IFRS 16, the group has reviewed its policy for the recognition of dilapidation obligations arising on leases.
Previously the group recognised a dilapidation provision when it was considered prabable that an obligation would crystallise through
the group axiting the property at any forthcoming lease break or end of lease {relevant date’). All leases were reviewed at least two years
prior to any relevant date to determine the requirement for any provision. In addition, any enerous property commitments provided for
under IAS 37 ‘Provisions’ included an assessment of dilapidation abligations. The provision under this policy at April 2019 was £0.6 million.

The group will now include an estimate of dilapidation costs at lease commencement, with the discounted value recognised as a provision
and included within the inimal cost of the right of use asset. As part of the IFRS 16 restatement at 1 May 2018 an adjustment of £1 7 million
has been recorded to increase the dilapidation provision on the balance sheet, with a correspending entry in retained earnings There
was no material impact on reported profits in prior years as a result of the previous assessment.

The standard has been adopted on a fully retrospective basis, which includes a full restatement of the comparative results in the financal
vear ended 30 April 2019,

In summary the adoplien of IFRS 16 had the following impact on the group’s financial results for the year ended 30 April 2019,
increase in operating profit {before amortisation and transaction costs) of £0.4 million to £8 O millian;
increase in finance costs of £0 5 million to £1.0 million;
reduction in profit befare tax of £0.1 million;

reduction in net assets of £1.5 million arising from the recognition of right of use assets, lease liabilities and increase in dilapidations
provisions, offset by the derecognition of IAS 17 working capital balances and onercus lease provisions (net of deferred tax); and

no impact on total cash flow; however net cash from operating actiaties increased by £2.1 milllon and net cash used in financing
activities increased by £2.1 million.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated

financial statements continued

2. Accounting policies conurued
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Adjustment to provisional accounting estimates under IFRS 3

Following agreement of completion accounts far prior year acquisitions, there were some amendments to provisional estimates In
accardance with 2 {c) above, provisional values are adjusted retraspectively and comparative iInformation is restated.

Reclassification of deemed remuneration payments

Deered remuneration payments (see note 2 {¢)) have been reclassified from investing cash flows to operating cash flows.

Reserves reclassification

The group has reclassified the premum on shares issued in relation to employee share schemes from share premium to retained earnings.
Ar 1 May 2018 and 30 April 2013 the adjustments between share premium and retained earnings were £603,000 and £997,000 respectively.

The tables below show the impact of these restatements.

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Adjustment
Lo provisional

As reported estimates on Restated
30 April 2079 IF35 16 acquIsitons 30 April 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 60,058 — — 60,058
Direct costs (34.276) 30 — (34,248)
Gross profit 25,782 30 — 25,812
Other operating income 353 — —_ 393
Administrative expenses {22,163} 432 (119} {21,850
Operating profit before amortisation and transaction costs 7,553 446 — 7,999
Transaction costs {1,180} 16 {119} {1,283)
Amortisation {2,361} — — (2,367
Operating profit 4,012 462 (113} 4,355
Finance costs (486} {520) — {1,006)
Profit before tax 3,526 (58) {115} 3,349
Tax (1,092) {10 — {1.102)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2,434 (68) (119) 2,247
Earnings per share
Basic 2.2 pence 2.0 pence
Diluted 2.1 pence 19 pence
Consolidated cash flow statement
Reclassif cation
ot deemed
As reported remunesaticn Restated
0 April 2019 IFR516 payments 30 Apnl 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000

Net cash from operating activities 7327 2,148 (3.772) 5,703
Net cash {used in) from Investing activities (3197 — 3,772 575
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities (3.639) (2,148) — (5.787)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 497 — — 497
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2. Accounting policies cortinued
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Consolidated balance sheet

Adjustment
As reported to provis onal Reserves Reszateu
30 Acnl 2019 IFRS 16 estirates  reclassification 20 AprI2oTy
£000 £C00  onacguisitions £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 59,392 — — — 59,392
Property, plant and equipment 1,766 — — — 1,766
Right of use assets — 7,399 — — 7,399
Trade and other receivables 3,220 — — — 3,220
64,378 7.39¢ — — 71,777
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 32,653 (339 18 — 32,332
Cash and cash equivalents 4,009 — — - 4,009
36,662 (339 18 — 36,341
Total assets 101,040 7.060 18 — 108,118
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (22,664) 753 (137) — (22,048}
Current tax liabilities {1,976) — — — {1,976)
Lease liabilities — (1,927} — — (1,927)
Provisions {588) 10 — — (478)
(25,228) (1,064} {137) — (26,429)
Net current assets 11,434 {1,403} (119) — 9912
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings (10,000) — — — (10,000}
Lease liabilities — (6,667} — — {6,667)
Provisions (763) {1,307} — — {2,070)
Deferred tax {5,348) 452 — — {4,896)
{16,117) {7,522} — — (23,633}
Total liahilities (41,339 {8,586) {137} — {50,062)
Net assets 59,701 (1,526} (11%) — 58,056
Fquity
Share capital 5719 — — — 5719
Share premium 23,190 — — (897) 22,193
Merger reserve 22,189 — — — 22,189
Capital redemption reserve 304 — — — 304
Retained earnings 8,299 (1,526} (113 997 7,651
Equity attributable to owners of the company 59,701 (1,526} (119) — 58,056
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

2. Accounting policies conurued
a3 ST ¥
Consolidated balance sheet

Aseported Reserves Restated
T Nay 2018 I-RS "6 redlassification I May 2018
£'000 £'00D £000 £900
Non-current assets
intangible assets 59,061 — — 53,061
Property, plant and equipment 1,512 — — 1,512
Right of use assets — 7,210 — 7.210
Trade and other receivables 1,759 — — 1,759
62,332 7210 — £9,542
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 29,041 (225} — 28,816
Cash and cash equivalents 3.518 — — 3,518
32,559 (225} — 32,334
Total assets 34,851 6,985 — 101,876
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (17,268} 887 — (16,381}
Current tax habihities (1,548) — — (1,548)
Lease liabilities — (2,147) — (2.147)
Provisions {783} 207 — (576)
(19,599 {1,653) — (20,652
Net current assets 12,960 (1,278) — 11,682
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,093} - — (1,093}
Borrowings {11.000) — — {11,000}
Lease liabilities — 6,079) — (6,079}
Provisiaons 414) {1,773) — (2,187}
Deferred tax {5.084) 462 — {4622}
(17,591) (7,390) - (24,981}
Total liabilities (37190 (8,443} — (45,633)
Net assets 57,701 (1,458) — 56,243
Equity
Share capial 5,508 — — 5,508
Share premium 22,789 — (603) 22,186
Merger reserve 20,248 — — 20,248
Capitat redemption reserve 304 — — 304
Retained earnings 8,852 {1,458) 603 7,957
Equity attributable to owners of the company 57,701 {1,458) — 55,243
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3. Revenue
Reverue recognised in the year of £70,503,000 (2019: £60,058,000) was exclusively from contracts with customers recognised
in accordance with IFRS 15. An analysis of revenue by nature of activity and recognition methed is detailed n note 4.

The contract balances recognised are:

2020 2019
£:000 £000
Contract assets
Trade receivables 5,487 6,485 -
Unbilled income 24,492 21,310
29,979 27795
Contract liabilities
Deferred income (4,168} {3,328)

The movernent in contract assets in the year cemprises: £1.4 million increase from acquisitions in the year and £0.8 milhon increase due
to organic growth in the year. The movernent In contract liabilities in the year comprises' £0 & million increase from acquisitions in the
year and £0.2 million increase ansing from formal insclvency appointments.

Revenue recognised in the year that was included in deferred income at the beginning of the year was £1 3 miliion {2019: £1.1 rillion).

For the group’s formal insclvency contracts, which are expected to be completed within three years, the aggregate amount of the overall
transaction price which has been allocated to performance cbligations that are unsatisfied (or only partially satisfied) at 30 April 2020 1s
£19.1 million (2019: £15.4 milhon).

For other contracts, the group has taken the practical expedients available under IFRS 15 not to disciose any amounts relating Lo
contracts which had an expected duration of one year or less.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

4. Segmental analysis

The group's operating segments are established on the basis of the components of the group that are evaluated regularty by the chief operating
decision maker The group is managed as two operating segments: business recovery and financial advisory services, and property advisory and

transactional services,

The performarnce of the group's operating segments is assessed by the chief operating decision rmaker on the basis of revenue and
operating profit (before armorusation and transaction costs), which is presented below. Revenue is presented by basis of recognition

and by service line, in accordance with IFRS 15,

Business
recovery and Property
financial advisory and Shared
advisory  transactional and central
services services costs  Consolidated
2020 2020 2020 2020
£000 E'000 E000 £000
Revenue
Tutal tevenue Trom rendering of protessional services 49,630 21,021 — 70,651
Inter-segment revenue —_ {148} — {148}
Revenue from ealernal Lustoner s 49,630 20,873 - 70,503
Over time 45,977 2,439 —_ 48 416
AL poInt N time 3,653 18,434 — 22.087
Revenue from exlernal customers by basis of recognition 49,630 20,873 — 70.503
Insolvency and advisory seivices 45,977 — - 45,977
Corporate finarce 3,653 - - 3,653
Commerdial proper Ly matiagermneht - 2,439 — 2,439
Prope Ly wonsulidney services — 10,717 - 10,717
Commercial property, businesses and olher asset disposals - 7.717 - 7,717
Revenue from external customers by service line 49,630 20,873 -_— 70,503
Qperating profit before amortisalivn and transaction costs 11,588 3,860 (5.329) 10,119
Business
recovery and Property
financial advisory and Unallocated
advisory  transactional corpprate
services services amounts Consolidated
2020 2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance sheet
Assetls 91,696 17,608 7.247 116,551
I tahilities (31,689) {6,503) {12,788) (50,980}
Net assets 60,007 11,105 {5.541) 65,571

Unallocated amounts include current and deferred tax habilities, cash and borrowings.

o
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4. Segmental analysis continued

Business
recovery ans Property
financial adwsory and Snared
30VISO" Y trarsactional ara central Resiated
serv.ces services LosLs Consoidated
2019 2019 209 2019
£1000 £000 £000 £900
Revenue
Total revenue from rendering of professional services 43,313 16,203 — 60,216
Inter-segment revenue — {158) - {158)
Revenue from external customers 43,313 16,745 — 50,052
Over time 40,455 2,098 — 42,557
At a pointin time 2,854 14,647 — 17,507
Revenue from external customers by basis of recognition 43,313 16,745 — 60,058
Insolvency and adviscry services 40,459 — — 40,459
Corporate finance 2,854 — — 2,854
Commercial property management — 2,098 — 2,098
Property consultancy services — 8,927 — 8,927
Commercial property and other business asset disposals — 5,726 — 5726
Revenue from external customers by service line 43,313 16,745 — 60,058
Operating profit before amortisation and transaction costs 8,889 3,826 (4,716) 7,999
Business
1ecovery and Property
financial aGvisary anc Unallozated
advisory rransactional corper ate
services services amoeunts Consolidated
2018 2m9 2019 2019
£000 E£0300 £000 £000
Balance sheet
Assels 88,933 15,176 4,009 108,18
Liabiiities (31.415) (6,065) {12,582) (50,062)

Net assets 57518 9,111 {(8,573) 58,056

T T L BETE

The group’s principal operations and markets are located in the UK.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

5. Profit for the year
Profil for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Restate
2020 2019
£000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 718 563
Depreciation of right of use assets 2,137 2,094
Impairmant of right of use asset - 369
Amortisation of iIntangible assets 3,315 2,558
Loss on dispaosal of property, plant and eguipment 31 —
Staff costs (note 6) 41,313 34,673
Shart-term lease expense 332 337
impairment of receivable balances {(note 14) 304 276
Reversal of impairment losses recognised on trade receivables (note 14) (44) {195)
During the year, the group obtained the following services from the group's auditor, at the costs detailed below:
2020 2019
£'000 £000
Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of the company's annual accounts 30 30
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its associates for other services to the group
- the audit of the company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 92 82
Total audit fees 122 12
- other advisory services 38 34
Total non-audit fees 38 34
During the year, the group incurred transaction costs as detailed below:
Restated
2020 2019
£'009 £000
Deemed remuneration 3,908 2,806
Acquisition costs 583 154
Gain on acquisition (note 23) (2,217) (2,806)
Charge arising under Begbies Trayner London {LLP) put and call option {(note 28) 889 1,129
1,283

Total transaction costs 3,163

These transaction costs are all included within administrative expenses.
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6. Staff costs

The average total number of partners and staft (including executive directors) working within the group during each year was

2020 2019
number nurrber
Partners 65 55
Staff 636 552
701 607
2020 2019
£000 £:000
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Wages, salaries and partners’ profit share 36,323 30,917
Social security costs 2,697 2,257
Pension costs (note 27) 2,191 1,400
Share-based payments 102 99
41,313 34,673
TSN AN PP I £ H
2020 2019
£:000 £:000
Short-term benefits 1.714 1,995
Share-based payments 2 2
1,716 1,997
number number
The average number of directors who:
Had awards receivable in the form of shares under a long-term incentive scheme 2 P
No directors participated in the group's defined contributicn pension scheme during either year.
7. Finance costs
Restated
2020 209
£'000 £000
Interest an borrowings 454 486
Finance charge on lease liabilities 454 460
Finance charge on dilapidation provisions 60 60
Total finance costs 1,006

968
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

8. Tax
Restated

2020 2619

£°000 £000
Current tax charge 2,048 1,313
Adjustment in respect of prior year (271) —
Total current tax charge 1,777 1,313
Deferred tax credit (note 19} (686) (211
Adjustments in respect of prior year 247 —
Impact of change in tax rate 615 —
Total deferred tax charge {credit) 176 (211)
Total income tax charge 1,953 1,102
Corporation tax is calculated at 19% (2019 19%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Restated

2020 2619

£000 £000
Profit before tax 2,884 3,349
Notional tax charge al the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2019: 19%) 548 636
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior years {6) —
Non-deductible impact of transaction costs 601 244
Impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax balances 615 —
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining Ltaxable profit 195 222
Total tax expense reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1,953 1,102

At summer Budget 2015, the Government annaunced a reduction in the corporaticn tax rate from 20% to 19% for the fiscal years
beginning 1 April 2017, 1 April 2018 and 1 April 2019, with a further reduction from 19% to 18% for the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2020.
At Budget 2016, the Government announced an additional 1% reduction to 17% for the fiscal year beginning 1 April 2020. These rates

were reflected in the group’s deferred tax calculations at 30 April 2019

In March 2020 the Government announced that the rate from 1 April 2020 onwards would remain at 19% rather than reduce to 18% and
subsequently 17%. Accordingly, the deferred tax provision at 30 April 2020 has been calculated using a future tax rate of 19%, resulting in

a charge to the income statement of £615,000.

9. Dividends

Restated
2020 2019
£000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 Aprid 2019 of 0.8 pence (2018: 0.7 pence) per share 914 77
Final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2019 of 1.8 pence (2018: 1.7 pence) per share 2,271 1,878
3,185 2,649

Amounts proposed as distributions to equity holders

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 April 2020 of 09 pence (2019: 0.8 pence) per share 1,149 914
Final divigend for the year ended 30 April 2020 of 1.9 pence (2019: 1.8 pance) per share 2,426 2,271
3,185

3,575

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting In September 2020, The interim dividend
far 2020 was not paid untit 11 May 2020 and, accordingly, has nol been included as a liability in these financial staterments nor as a distribution

to equity shareholders.
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10. Earnings per share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

Restated
2020 2009
£000 £:000
Earnings
profit for the year attributable to equity holders 931 2,247
2020 2079
number numbe-
‘000 ‘000
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ardinary shares for the purposes of basic earmings per share 125,652 112,548
Effect of:
Share options 1,477 404
Contingent shares as consideration for capital transactions 144 3,476
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 127,273 116,428
Restated
2020 2019
pence pence
Basic earnings per share 0.7 20
Diluted earnings per share 07 19
The calculation of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data’
Restated
2020 20149
£'000 £000
Earnings
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders 231 2,247
Amortisation of iIntangible assets arising on acquisitions 3,104 2,361
Transaction costs 3,163 1,283
Tax effect of above items (590) {449}
Impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax balances 615 —
Adjusted earnings 7.223 5,442
Restated
2020 20%9
pente pence
Adjusted basic earnings per share 57 48
5.7

Adjusted diluted earnings per share
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

11. Intangible assets

Intangible
455ers
af18.ng 0N
Goodwill Software acquistions Total
£:000 £000 £1020 £000
Cost
At 1 May 2018 53,213 1,306 21,731 73,750
Ansing on acquisitions — — 2,673 2,673
Additions — 216 — 216
AL 30 April 2018 50,213 2022 24,404 76,639
Arising on acquisitions — — 3,257 3,257
Additions — 103 — 103
At 30 April 2020 50,213 2,125 27,661 79,999
Amortisation and impairr.;;n;w - )
AL 1 May 2018 — 1,367 13,321 14,689
Amartisation during the year — 197 2,361 2,558
At 30 April 2019 — 1564 15,683 17,247
Amortsation during the year - 211 3,104 3,315
At 30 April 2020 — 1,775 18,787 20,562
Carrying amounltm“
At 30 April 2020 50,213 350 8,874 59,437
At 30 April 2019 " 50,213 458 8,721 59,392
At 30 Aprit 2018 50,213 439 8,409 59,061

The carrying value of intangible assets arising on acquisitions comprises brands of £2,987,000 (2019: £2,852,000), customer relationships
of £4,835,000(2019: £4,456,000), order books of £866,000(2019: £1,197,000) and websites of £186,000 (2019: £216,000). The remaining
useful economic lives of intangible assets arising on acquisition are between one and nine years.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s allocated, at acquisition, ta the cash-generating units (CGUs') that are expected to benefit
fram that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated wholly to the insclvency CGU.

The group tests goodwill annually for impairment or mare frequently if there are indications that goodwili might be impaired.

The recoverable amount of the CGU 1s based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections over a 20 year period, including the
latest one year forecast approved by the board. A 20 year period has been used as the directors believe this is an appropriate period to
reflect insolvency numbers over an economic cycle.

The one year forecast is prepared considering local partners’ expectations based an market knowledge, numbers of new engagements
and the pipeline of gpportunities. The remaining vears are based on anticipated insolvency numbers over an economic cycle, together
with historical financial performance.

{ [ - . PR, ""”*‘*Tdigj!;!:}
The key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those regarding:

pre-tax discount rate;
revenue; and

operating profit margins,

The group’s post-tax weighted average cost of capitai has been used to calculate a group pre-tax discount rate of 9.4% (2019, 10.0%), which
reflects current market assessments of the ume value of money for the periad under review and the nisks specific to the group. As the insolency
CGU comprises the majority of the group’s activities this has been used as the discount rate for the purpose of the value in use calculation.
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11. Intangible assets cortinuad

Revenue assumptions in the one year forecast are derived from local partners’ expectations based on market knowledge, numbers

of new engagements and the pipeline of cpportunities Future year revenue levels are based on anticipated insclvency numbers over an
economic cycle. This anticipates an increase In insolvency appointments during recession followed by subseguent decreases. The average
number of insolvency appointments over the economic cycle 15 1N ine with historical levels. Over the last economic cycle between
calendar years 2008 and 2019 insalvency numbers (source: The nsolvency Service quarterly staustics on the number of corporate

insclvencies in England and Wales) ranged between 14,500 per annum and 23,500 per annum.

=y

Operating profit margins in the ane year forecast are derived from local partners’ expectations based on the number of current

engagements and cost base. Margins over the extrapolation period range between 21% and 26%, which are based on past experiences

and expectations of future market developments.

With regard to the assessment of value in use for the insolvency CGU, the directors believe that reasonably possible changes in any
of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying value of the unit to exceed its recoverable amount.

12. Property, plant and equipment

Leasenold Office Moor
improvements equipment Compurers veh cles fotal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
AL T May 2018 4,107 1,506 3,479 52 9138
Arising on acquisitions — 29 4 — 33
Additions 355 37 392 — 784
At 30 April 2019 4,456 1,572 3,875 52 9,955
Arising on acquisitions 13 — 19 65 97
Additions 111 15 560 — 686
Disposals (219} (6} (263} (25} {513)
Reallocation 24 {24) — — _
At 20 dpril 2020 4,385 1.557 EREY 92 10,225
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 May 2018 3,397 1336 2,889 4 7626
Charge for the year 197 71 278 17 563
AL 30 April 2019 3,594 1,407 3167 27 8,189
Charge for the year 219 74 402 23 718
Disposals (203) &) (26 {14) {(482)
At 30 April 2020 3,610 1,477 3,308 30 8,425
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2020 775 80 883 62 1.800
At 30 Aprit 2019 862 165 708 31 1,766
At 30 April 2018 704 170 590 48 1.512
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FENANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

St e e T T .

13. Right of use assets

Marar Office
Property veh cles cquipment Tetal
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
AU T May 2018 9,762 1,680 597 12,039
Arising on acquisitions 798 — — 798
Additions 1,283 561 — 1,854
AL 30 April 2015 11,853 2,241 597 14,691
Arising on acquisitions 481 — — 481
Additions 235 602 577 1,414
Disposals —_ — (597) {597)
At 30 April 2020 12,569 2,843 577 15,989
Depreciation and impairment
AU 1 May 2018 3,709 876 244 4,829
Charge for the year 1,358 582 154 2,094
Impairment 369 — — 369
AU 30 April 2019 5,436 1,458 399 7,282
Charge for the year 1,373 556 208 2137
Disposals — — (461} {(467)
At 30 April 2020 6,809 2,014 145 8,968
Carrying amount o
At 30 April 2620 5,760 829 432 7,021
AL 30 April 2019 - i - M6,4‘|7 783 199 7,39;
At 30 April 2018 6,053 804 353 7,210

The impairment charge recognised in the prior year was in respect of an onerous property lease, to reduce the carrying value of the asset to nil.

14. Trade and other receivables

2020 2019
£°000 £000
Non-current
Deemed remuneration 4,586 3,220
Current
Trade receivables 6,879 7,823
Less: impairment provision (1,392) (1,338)
Trade receivables - net 5,487 6,485
Unbiiled income 24,492 21,310
Cther debtors and prepayments 1,987 2,058
Deemed remuneration 4,494 2,479
32,332

36,460

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms. Refer to note 20 for disclosures on credit risk.
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14. Trade and other receivables continued

The impairment provision comprises a specific loss allowance provision of £1,039,000 (2019 £327.000) and an expected credit loss
provision of £353,000 {2019 £411,000). The expected loss provision for trade receivables is calculated on the gross carrying amaount
of trade receivables less any specific loss allowance, and 1s detailed as follows,

Rays past rne

<30 days <60 days <ab days <180 days >180 days Total
30 Aprii 2020 £000 £000 £000 £00y £000 £'000
Fxpected loss rate 1% 1% 3% 9% 42% 6%
Gruss ainount less specific loss provision 2,858 1,080 604 709 589 5,840
txpected credit luss pruvisian 12 16 21 61 243 353

Days past due

<3 days <60 days <90 days <180 days ~180 days Total
30 Apnl 2019 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expected loss rate 1% 2% 4% 10% 31% 5%
Gross amount less spealfic loss provision 3,841 1109 444 686 816 6,896
Expected credit loss provision 39 26 19 72 255 4
2020 2019
£000 £000
Ralance at beginning of the year 1,338 1,082
Adoption of IFRS 9 using the retrospective application method s 359
Amounts arising on acquisition 2 20
Amounts written off during the year (208) (204)
Amaounts recovered during the year (44) {195)
Impairment charge in the year 304 276
Balance at end of the year 1,392 1,338
15. Trade and ether payables
Resated
2020 20'9
£000 £000
Current
Trade payables 1,176 953
Accruals 7,055 6,372
Other taxes and social security 3,687 3,308
Deferred income 4,168 3,338
Other creditors 5,853 4,980
Deferred consideration 150 772
Deemed remuneration liabilities 134 2,325
22,223 22,048

Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms agreed with suppliers.
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and cther payables approximates to their far value,

In addition to the deemed remuneration liabilities recognised ahove of £0.3 million, there are further anticipated obligations based on current
forecasts of £7.0 million s a result of acquisitions where the service obligations of the selling shareholders have not yet been performed.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

16. Lease liabilities

Motor OFfire
Praperty vehicles eguipment Totat
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
AUT May 2018 7,040 821 365 8,226
Finance charge 420 28 12 460
Additions - new leases 1,216 561 — 1777
Arising on acquisitions 732 — - 739
Lease payments {1,830 B12) {166) (2,608)
AL30 April 2015 7.585 798 2N 8,594
Finance charge an 27 16 454
Additions - new leases 236 601 577 1,414
Arising on acquisitions 427 — — 427
Lease payments {1,570} (584) {234) (2,388)
Disposals — — {132) (132)
At 30 April 2020 7.089 842 438 8,369
Current habibties 1,605 437 190 2,232
Non-current liablliues 5,484 405 248 6,137
At 30 April 2070 1, UBY 842 438 8,369
AT the balance sheet date, the group had outstanding commitments far short-term leases as follows:

2020 2013

£000 £000
Aggregate undiscounted commitments for short-term leases 48 121
17. Borrowings

2020 2619

£000 £000
Non-current

Unsecured loans at amortised cost 10,000 10,000

The group's principal banking facilities at 30 April 2020 comprise an unsecured, revolving credit faciity (RCFY of £25 million and an
uncommitted acquisition facility of £5 milllon which were entered inta on 1 November 2016. The principal features of these borrowings
are summarised as follows:

RCF of £25 millien provided by HSBC, of which £10 million was drawn at 30 April 2020 (2019: £10 million). The effective interest rate
was 3.5%; together with

uncommitted acquisition facility of £5 million provided by HSBC, which was undrawn at 30 Aprit 2020 (2019: undrawn)
The group’s banking facilities mature on 31 August 2023,

All borrowings and cash balances are denominated in sterling. The directors consider that the carrying amount of the group’s borrowings
approximates to their fair value.
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18. Provisions

Onerous
Disoasal Dilapidation contract
RIOVIS ONS urovisors prowsions Total
E'00 £'000 £000 £000
AUT May 2019 as previously reported 260 611 430 1,351
Restatement {see note 1 (t)) — 1,677 (480 1,157
A1 May 2019 as restated 260 2,288 — 2,548
Interest expense — 60 — 60
Charged — — 366 366
Arising on acquisition — 78 — 78
Utilised (110) (124) — (234)
At 3U Apnil 2020 150 2,302 366 2,818
Current habilities 47 685 157 883
Non-current liabilities 103 1,617 215 1,935
At 30 April 2020 150 2,362

Disposal provisions include liabilities arising from warranty and onercus contract abligations relating to discontinued businesses.

The non-current elements of the provisions are all expected to be utilised in the periods up to 30 April 2023,

19. Deferred tax

366

2,818

The following are the deferred tax (liabilines) assets recognised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior year:

Tax Short-term

deductible timirg
goodwill Intangibles ditferences Total
E'000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 May 2018 as previously reported (4,263) (1,509) 348 {5,424)
Restatement (see note 1 {t) — — 452 452
At 1 May 2018 as restated (4,263) {1,509) 800 {4.972)
{Charge) credit to Income (27) 449 (211) 21
Arising on acquisitions — (475) 2 473)
Adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 using the retrospective application method - — 338 338
At 30 April 2019 (1,290) (1.535) 929 {4,296)
Credit{charge) to Income — 610 (171 439
Arising on acquisitions — (6207 — (620)
Income statement effect of change in tax rate (492) {142} 19 (615)
At 30 April 2020 (4,782) (1,687) 777 {5,692)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

19. Deferred tax continued
Certain deferred tax assets and habllities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for
financial reporting purposes’

Restdied

2020 2019

£000 £000

Deferred tax liabilities (6,597) {5,899)
Deferred tax assets 905 1,003

(5,692) (4,896)

20. Financial instruments

Coae O R P P ¢ G (TR ST AR

The group's principal financial nstruments comprise cash balances and bank loans. The main purpose of these financial instruments

15 to rarse finance for the group's operations. The group also has various other financial instruments, such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which anse directly from its operations.

It1s, and has been throughout the period under review, the group’s pelicy that no trading in financial instruments shail be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below

The group's external borrowings at the balance sheet date comprise loan facilities. All principal borrowings are on floating interest rates, The
group does not seek to fix mterest rates an these borrowings as the board currently considers the exposure to interest rate risk acceptable,

if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher and all other variables were held constant, the group's profit for the year ended
30 April 2020 and net assets at that date would decrease by £24,000 {2019: £37,000). Thus 1s attributable to the group's exposure to
maovements in interest rate on its variable rate borrowings.

The nature of the group’s debtor balances, the time taken for payment by clients and the associated credit risk are dependent on the type
of engagement

On formal insolvency appointments (which form the majority of the group’s activities), invoices are generally raised having achieved
approval from creditors to draw fees. This is typically settled on a timely basis from case funds. The credit risk on these engagements
is therefore considered to be extremely low,

On other engagements, the timescale to receive payment from the date of invoice 1s typically longer as the group's standard 30 day
payment terms {referred ta in note 14) are not practically enforceable in all situations. The board does not believe that this is an indication
of increased credit risk on these engagements.

Receivable balances are monitored an an ongoing basis with the result that the group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are disclosed i note 14, The group does not believe itis exposed to any material
cancentrations of credit risk.

uUnbilled revenue s recognised by the group only when all conditions for revenue recognition have been met in line with the group’s
accounting policy in note 2 {j).
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20. Financial instruments cortinued

Liquidity risk 1s the nsk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting 1ts obligations associated with its financial habilines. The group's
abifity to generate cash from formal insolvency appointments is usually reliant on asset realisations A deterioration in realisations in the
short term could reduce the group's operating cash generation and increase its financing requirements. The group monitors its risks to
a shortage of funds through regular cash management and forecasting and ensuring suitable headroom within its banking facilities

The group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of its committed bank facihiues,
and giving consideration to other available sources of finance such as bank overdrafts, finance leases and hire purchase contracts,

There is no material risk associated with foreign currency transactions or overseas subsidiaries.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the group’s financial habilities at 30 April based on contractual payments:

Reszated
At 30 April 2020 AC30 Anril 2019

Within Between After with.n Between After
1year 2-5 years S years Tozal 1 year 2-5years S years Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 E'000 £000 F'000
Bank borrowings 265 10,618 —_— 10,883 275 10,905 — 11,180
Trade and other payables 22,223 - — 22,223 22,048 — — 22,048
Lease liabilities 2,586 6,290 1,890 10,766 2,247 6,506 2,561 11,314
25,074 16,908 1,890 43,872 24,570 17,411 2,561 44,542

Lapng sarac L o

The primary objective of the group's capital management is to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and business requirements. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the group may raise additional or pay down debt finance, adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or 1ssue new shares.

The table below presents quanttative data for the compenents the group manages as capital:

Restared
2020 019
£000 £000
Shareholders’ funds 65,571 58,056
Bank borrowings 10,000 10,000
At 30 April 75.571 68,056
B Al S L I A ST RN T PINRCEY  SWR
The table below shows the classification of the group's financial instruments:
2020 2019
£000 £900
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables 5,487 6,485
Cash at bank 7.247 4,009
12,734 10,424
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables {22,223) (22,048}
Bank borrowings {10,000) (10,000}
{32,223) (32,048}
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21. Share capital

2020 2019 2020 2019
thousand thousand £000 £7000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5 pence
At 1 May 114,351 110,127 5719 5,508
Staff SIP scheme - 13 - 1
Issue of shares for share-based payments 79 834 4 43
Shares 1ssued as consideration far acquisitions 1,460 1,485 13 74
Shares issued as deferred consideration 770 1,852 38 93
Placing shares issued 11,041 — 552 —
At 30 April 127,701 114,351 6,386 5719

A share placing of 11,041,440 new ordinary shares was completed cn 26 July 2018.

Ordinary shares carry no right to fixed income and each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the company.

22. Share-based payments

The group operated two equity-settled share-based payment arrangements in the year' a market value share option scheme for senior

management and an HMRC approved save as you earn ('SAYE'} scheme for qualifying employees.

The group recognised an expense relating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions of £102,000 (2019: £69,000), of which

£72,000 refates to the market value share option scheme and £30,000 relates to the SAYE scheme,

The group also operated a cash-settled share-based arrangement in the year. The group recognised an expense of £150,000 11 relation

Lo the cash-settled share-based payment arrangement.

Details of movernents in share options during the current and prior year are as follows

2020 2019

Number Weighted Number weighted

of share average of share average

options  exercise price optians exercise price

thousand pence thousand pence

Cutstanding at 1 May 5,184 54 5137 43
Granted during the period 1,500 88 1,134 59
Forfeited during the period — —_ (122) —
Exercised durning the period {223) 45 (965) 10
Outstanding at 30 April 6,461 62 5134 54
Exercisable at 30 April 1,577 39 1,800 40

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for options exercised in the year was 83 pence.
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22. Share-based payments continued
The table below shows details in relation to options outstanding at the period end:

2020 2014

Number Number
of share Contractual of share Contractual
Exercse price options  life remaining options life rerma ning
Schemnce pence thousand years toJsard years
Share option scheme 2013 37 1,327 3.5 1,425 4.5
Share option scheme 2014 51 250 4.2 375 5.2
SAYE scheme 2018 58 1,134 2.0 1134 30
Share option scheme 2017 63 2,150 7.5 2,150 85
Share option scheme 2018 68 100 8.0 100 9.0
88 1,500 9.5 — —

Share option scheme 2013

The fair value of the eguity-settled share-based payments was calculated using the Black-5choles option pricing medel with the

following assumptions:

Share option Share optian Share optior Share option SAYE Share option

scheme scherre scheme scheme scheme scheme

Granz date 2013 2012 2017 2918 2018 2019
Share price at grant date {pence) 38 52 &3 6% 74 88
Exercise price (pence) 37 51 63 68 59 88
Vesting period (years) 3 3 3 3 3 5
Time to expiry (years) 10 ¢ 10 10 4 10
Expected volatility (%) 23 25 17 17 17 29
Risk free rate (%) 0.8 0.8 05 0.5 05 04
Expected dividend yield {%) 6.2 6.2 3.6 3.5 34 35
3.3 9.8 4.4 5.4 14.6

Fair value per option (pence)

79

The expacted volatility has been determined based on histerical volatility of the group's share price in ine with the vesung penod of the
opticn. The risk free rate 1s based on UK treasury 1ssued bonds of a term consistent with the opticn life. The fair value 1s spread over the

vesting period of the options.

ooy gt

1,500,000 market value share options were granted on 8 November 2019. The exercise of the grants is subject to the following
performance conditions in the period from 1 May 2019 to 30 April 2024:

1 50% require anincrease In adjusted earnings per share of RPI plus 6%; and

2. 50% require total sharehalder return to exceed that of a comparator group of AIM companies.
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

23, Acquisitions
On 18 October 2019 the group acguired the entire issued share capital of Ernest Wilsons & Co Limited and of Ernest Wilson's (West Yorkshire)
Limited, which trade callactively as Ernest Wilson, a business transfar agent

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are set out below:

cair value
Book value adjustrents Fair value
£000 £000 £000
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 1,108 1,108
Property, plant and eguipment 97 — 97
Right of use assets — 481 481
Trade and other receivables 99 n 98
Cash and cash equivalents 1477 - 1,477
Trade and other payables (298) - (298}
Provisions — (78} (78)
Lease liabilities — 427} (427)
Corporation tax (179 — (17%)
Deferred tax — (211} {(Z11)
Total identihable assets 1,196 872 2,068
Satisfied by:
Consideration under IFRS 3 —
Gain on acquisition 2,068
Consideration accounted for as deemed remuneration
Cash consideration 3,000
Equity instruments (1,163,874 new ordinary shares) 1,000
Completion accounts payment 400
Final payment due following completion accounts adjustments mna
Contingent consideration subject ta financial perfermance in three year post-acquisition period 1,630
6,644
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 3,000
Completion accounts payment 300
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired 11,477

2,423

Fair value adjustrnents of £1,108,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded. Betails of intangible
assets recorded can be found in note 11.

As detailed above the consideration payakle for this acquisition requires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed by the
selling shareholders over a five year period. These amounts are accountad for as deemed remuneration (see note 2(c)).

Acquisition costs of £119,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost.

The acquisition contributed £825,000 of revenue and £80,000 to the group's operating profit (before amartisation and transaction €osts)
for the period between the date of acguisition and the balance sheet date
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23. Acquisitions centinued

On 24 October 2019 the group acquired the entire issued share capital of Alexander Lawson Jacobs Limited, an insolvency practice based

in London

The amounts recognised In respect of the idenufiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are set out below:

Farvalue
Book value ad,tstmerts Fair value
£000 £000 £000
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 2,057 2,057
Property, plant and eguipment 28 (28 —
Trade and cther receivables 60 835 895
Cash and cash equivalents 1,194 — 1,194
Trade and other payables (83) (7786) (859)
Carporation tax 2N — (21)
Deferred tax — (391) (391)
Total Idenufiable assets 1178 1,697 2,875
Satisfied by:
Consideration under IFRS 3:
Cash consideration 1,400
Equity Instruments (296,195 new ordinary shares) 250
Completion accounts payment 1,000
Final payment due following completion accounts adjustments 150
2,8C0
Gain on acquisition 75
Consideration accounted for as deemed remuneration
Cash consideration 700
Contingent consideration subject to financial performance in five year post-acquisition periad 4,000
4700
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 2,160
Completion accounts payment 1,000
Less. cash and cash equivalents acquired {1,194)

1,906

Fair value adjustments of £2,057,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded. Details of intangible

assets recorded can be found in note 11,

As detailed above, efements of the consideration payable for this acquisition regquires post-acquisition service obligations Lo be performed

by the selling sharehelders over a five year period. These amounts are accounted for as deemed remuneration {see note 2(c)).

Acquisition costs of £313,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost

The acquisition contributed £2,100,000 of revenue and £967,000 to the group’s operating profit {(before amortisation and transaction

costs) for the period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

23. Acquisitions continued
ks SRR e %

On 23 September 2019 the group acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Regeneratus Consulting 1 Limited, an Exeter-based advisory practice.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed dre set out below

Fair value
Book value adjustments tairvalue
£000 £099 £000
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 92 92
Trade and other recewvables 8 — 3
Cash and cash eguwvalents 689 — 689
Trade and other payables (7 - (7}
Corpaoration tax (1200 — (120)
Deferred tax —_ {18) (18)
Total identifiable assets 570 74 644
Satisfied by:
Consideration under IFRS 3:
Cornpletion accounts payment 570
Gain on acquisition 74
Consideration accounted for as deemed remuneration
Cash consideration 500
Contingent caonsideration subyject to financial perfarmance in four year post-acquisition period 1,100
1,600
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 500
Completion accounts payment 570
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired (689)
381

Fair value adjustments of £92,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded. Details of intang:ble
assats recorded can be found in note 1.

As detailed above, elements of the consideration payable for this acquisition requires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed
by the selling shareholder over a five year period. These amounts are accounted for as deemed remuneration (see note 2(c}).

Acquisition costs of £40,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive Income as a transaction cost

The acquisition contributed £168,000 of revenue and £20,000 to the group's operating profit (before amortsation and transaction costs)
for the pericd between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisitions had been camptered on the first day of the finanmal year, the group revenues for the period would have been
£73.3 millior and group profit before Lax woutd have been £3 6 million

The amounts recognised above are provisional estimates.

In relation to prior year acquisitions, a reduction of £0.7 million was made to current estimates of consideration accounted for as
deemed remuneration.
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24, Reconciliation to the cash flow statement

Restated
2020 2019
£000 £000
Profit for the year 931 2,247
Adjustments for:
Tax 1,953 1,102
Finance costs 968 1,006
Amortisation of intangible assets 3.315 2,558
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 718 563
Depreciation of right of use assets 2,137 2,004
Impairment of right of use asset - 369
Gain on acquisition (2,217 (2,806)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 31 —
Share-based payment expense 102 99
Increase in deemed remuneration receivable {1,782) (1,733)
{Decrease} Increase in deemed remuneration liabilities (2,191) 1,896
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 3,965 7395
Increase in recervables (excluding deemed remuneration) {(1,177) (714)
Increase in payables (excluding deemed remuneration liabilities) 1,813 1,773
Increase (decrease} in provisions 133 (438)
Cash generated by operations 4,734 8016

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet) comprise cash at bank and

other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or Jess.

25. Reconciliation of movement in net debt

Cash and cash Nen-current
equivatents borrowings Net gebt
£'000 £000 £'000
AU 1 May 2019 4,009 {10,000} {5.391)
Cash flows {(122) — (122)
Cash and cash equivalents acguired {note 23) 3,360 — 3,360
At 30 April 2020 7.247 (10,000) (2,753)

Annual report and accounts 2020 Begbies Traynor Group plc

o




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

26. Contingent liabilities
The group had no material contingent liabilities at 30 April 2020 or 30 April 2019

27. Pensions
The group operates defined contributton pension schemes for all qualifying employees.

The total cost charged to income of £2,191,000 (2019 £1,400,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by the group.
As at 30 April 2020, contributions of £202,000 (2019° £149,000) in respect of the current year, which were not yet due for payment,
had not been gaid over to the schemes

28. Related party transactions
Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note.

PLE TR T
During the year tha following transactions, all of which were on arm’s length terms and in the ordinary course of business, occurred
N which directors have an interest:

A commercial property used by members of the group during the year 1s part owned by Mark Fry Rent and service charges paid onthis
property by entities within the group in the year totalled £35,000 (2019: £55,000). At 30 April 2020 £nil (2019 £nil) was payable in respect
of this transaction. Mark Fry also part owns a company which provides archiving facilities to entities within the group. £24,000 (2013: £24,000)
was paid by entities within the group for this service during the year. At 30 April 2020 £6,000 {2019: £6,000) was payable in respect of
this service.

Ric Traynor purchased the controlling interest in Red Flag Alert LLP ('Red Flag’) from the group on 10 April 2012, with the group retaining

a minority nterest in the partnarship. The group continues te provide a number of central support services to Red Flag for which £96,000
was payable by Red Flag duning the year {2019 £96,000) The group has negetiated an agreement to retain full access to the database and
joint marketing rights for the publication of Red Flag Alert guarterly statistics and was charged a fee of £150,000 for the year (2019: £150,000;.

At 30 April 2020 £80,000 (2819: £141,000) was owed by Red Flag Alert LLP.

Two commercial properties used by members of the group during the prior year were owned or part owned by Ric Traynaor or his personal
pension fund. Rent and service charges paid on those properties by entities within the graup in the year totalled £nil (2019: £13,458),
At 30 April 2020 £nil (2019: £nil) was payable in respect of these transactions.

Zeghoo Dowynoer {boeckos - s oe
There was a put and call option in place for the group to acguire Mark Fry’s interest in Begbies Traynor (London) LLP during a three

month period after 30 September 2019, for £4 million {determined as an agreed multiple of average profit aver the three year period
ended 30 April 2019). The aption was settied during the year,

The liability to the group under this option 1s accounted for in accordance with the group's policy for business combinations {note 2¢) and
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost as disclesed in note 5 to the financial statements.
The charge in the current financial year was £0.9 million (2015: £1.1 million} with an asset of £0.9 million recognised at 30 April 2020 within
current deemed remuneration.

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnet of the group, is set out in the directors’ remuneration report
on page 27.

29. Reserves
The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within owners’ equity:
Share premium Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value

Merger reserve Formation of the group in 2004, and premium for shares issued on acquisitions in accerdance with
Companies Act requirements.

Capital redemption reserve Repurchase of own share capital

Retained earnings Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Company balance sheet

L

Restated
2020 2019
Nates £000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 8 —
Investment in subsidiaries 5 37,932 36,682
37,940 36,682
Current assets
Trade and other receivables & 40,494 32,033
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payables 7 (67) (49)
Net current assets 40,427 31,984
Total assets less current liabilities 78,367 68,665
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Trade and other payables 7 (500} {500}
Net assets 77,867 68,166
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capitat 8 6,386 5,719
Share premium account 29,459 22,193
Merger reserve 23,927 22189
Capital redemption reserve 304 304
Profit and loss account 17,791 17,761
Shareholders’ funds

77.867

68156

As permitted by section 408 of the Comparies Act 2008, the company has elected not to present its own profit and Joss account
for the year Begbies Traynor Group plc reperted a profit for the financial year ended 30 April 2020 of £3117,000 {2019: £3,110,000).

The finanaial statements of Beghies Traynor Group ple, registered number 5120043, were approved by the board of directors and

authorised for 1ssue on 20 July 2020 They were signed on its behalf by:

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

Nick Taylor

Group finance director
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company statement of changes in equity

NI N A

Captal
Snare Share Merger rederonion Retained Toral
capizal preraum reserve FOSCIVE eanings equity
£'000 E'000 £'000 £000 £:000 £000
ALY May 2018 5,508 22,789 20,248 304 16,356 65,205
Restatement (see note 1) — (603) — — 6503 —
AL 1 May 2018 as restated 5,508 22,186 20,248 304 16,959 65,205
Profit for the year — — — — 3110 3.110
Dividends — — — — (2,649 (2,649)
Credit 1o equity for equity-settied
share-based payments — — — o 38 38
Shares issued as consideration for
acquisitions 74 — 834 — — 908
Shares issued as deferred consideration 93 — 1,107 — — 1,200
SiP shares issued 1 7 — — — 8
Shares issued for share-based payments 43 — — — 303 346
At 30 Apnit 2019 5712 22,193 22,189 304 17,761 68,166
Profit for the year — — — — 3117 317
Dividends — — — — (3,185} (3,185}
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — 102 102
Shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 73 — 1177 — — 1,250
Shares issued as deferred consideration 38 — 561 — — 599
Placing shares 1ssued 552 7,266 — — — 7.818
Shares issued for share-based payments 4 — — — 4 —
At 30 April 2020 6,386 29,459 23,927 304 17,791 77,867

@ Begbies Traynor Group plc Annual report and accounts 2020



Notes to the company financial statements

Lo - g e

1. Significant accounting paolicies

The separate financial statements of the company have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom taw and accounting standards.

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year.
V3R

Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less provision for impairment. The carrying value of fixed asset investments are

reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Shier v RN

The fair value of services received in exchange for the grant of options is recognised as an expense over the vesting period in accordance

with FRS 102, Options are valued using the Black-Schotes option pricing model. Further detalls are provided in note 22 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Where shares are issued to employees of subsidiaries, this is treated as part of the cost of investment in that subsiciary.

SRS STPUNE - SIS LTINS | Al S . . [EG & U B -
In the process of applying the company's accounting policies, the company is required to make certain estimates, jJudgements and assumptions
that it believes are reasonable based upon the information avallable. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the pericds presented.

On an ongoing basis, the company evaluates Its estimates using historical experience, consultation with experts and other methods
considered reasonable in the particular crcumstances. Actual results may differ from the estimates, the effect of which 1s recognised
in the period In which the facts that give rise to the revision become known.

The directors do not consider there 1o be any critical accounting jJudgements or key sources of uncertainty.

Begbies Traynor Group plc meets the definition of a quakifying entity under FRS 102 and has therefore taken advantage of the disclosure
exemptions available to it in respect of its separate financial statements. Exemnptions have been taken in these separate company financial
statements in relation to share-based payments, presentation of a cash flow statement and remuneration of key management personnel.

The company’s shareholders have been notified in writing about the intention to take advantage of the disclosure exemptions and
n¢ objections have been received.

The company also intends to take advantage of these exemptions in the financial statements to be issued in the following year. Objections
may be served on the company by its sharehoiders

feeng
The company has reclassified the premium on shares issued in relation to employee share schemes from share premium to retained armings.
AL 1 May 2018 and 3C April 2019 the adjustments between share premium and retained earnings were £603,000 and £997,000 respectively.

2. Statement of compliance
The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group plc have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, and the Comganies Act 2006.

The functional currency of the group s considered ta be pounds sterling because this is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates.

3. Profit for the year
The auditoer's remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

4. Staff costs
The company has six employees {2019: five employees).

2020 2019
£000 £000

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Salaries 619 569
Socaial security costs 90 73
Pension costs 21 18
730 661
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the company financial statements

continued

5. Investment in subsidiaries

£000

Cost and net book value

At 1 May 2018 35737

Additions 345

AL 30 Apnl 2019 36,682

Additions 1,250
37,932

AL 30 April 2020

Detalls of subsidiary entities are set out below, These undertakings are included in the consclidated group financial statements and are

100% controlled Companies are listed under their registered office.

Subsidiary undertaking

Nature of business

Country of incorporatior

340 Deansgate, Manchester M3 4LY
Begbies Traynor Limited?

BTG Consulting Limited!

Begbies Traynor International Limited’
Begbies Traynor (Central) LLP

Begbies Traynor (London} LLP
Beghies Traynor (SY) LLP

springboard Corporate Finance LLP
BTG Corporate Finance LLP

BTG Advisory (Investigations) Limited
BTG Advisory LLP

BTG Global Advisory Limited

BTG Corporate Solutions Limited

Alexander Lawson Jacobs Limited

Regeneratus Consulting 1 Limited

IK (North East) Limited

Dunion & Co Limited

JSDNSW Limited’

Insolvency Advice Limited?

Begbies Traynor Legal Services LLP

BTG Tax LLP

Toronto Square, Toronta Street, Leeds LS1 2H)
Eddisons Commercial (Holdings) Limited?

Eddisons Commercial Limited

Eddisons Commercial (Property Management) Limited
Eddisons Insurance Services Limited

Eddisons Holdings Limited

Ernest Wilsons & Co Limited

Ernest Wilson's {West Yorkshire) Limited

MMXI Limited

BSMH Limited

BSMSR Limited

The London Silver Vaults and Chancery Lane Safe Deposit Company Limited

TBS&V Ltd

Pugh & Company Limited

M Asset Managerment Limited

Taylors Business Surveyors and Valuers Limited
Theauclionpeople.co Limited
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Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Business recovery
Business recovery
Business recovery
Carporate finance
Corporate finance
Investigation agency
Financial consulting

International network

organisation
Business recovery
Business recovery
Financial consulting
Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Property consultancy
Property consultancy
Praperty consultancy
Insurance brokerage

Holding company

Property consultancy
Property consultancy
Property consultancy
Property consultancy

Dormant

Management company
Property consultancy

Auctioneers

Property consuitancy

Dormant
Dormant

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and wales
England and Wales



5. Investment in subsidiaries continued

Sabsidiary Lnrertaking Nature of business  Country of ncorporaton

¢/o0 S&P Consulting 5.1, Urb. Calypso, C.C. Valdepinos,
1y 3 A29649 Mijas Costa, Malaga, Spain
Eddisons Spain 5 L Facilities management Spain

1 Interest & controlled by subsichary undzrtakar gs, oxcept where marked where shares are held divectly oy Beghies T-aynar Groue plc
All shareholdings relate to ordinary shares.

The directors of the company are of the opinion that the value of the investments in subsidiaries, as underpinned by therr membership
benefits in the operating entities of the group, 1s not less than the cost of those investments

The following subsidiary undertakings have claimed exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006:

Sdbsidiary undertakirg

BTG Consulting Limited

BTG Corporate Solutions Limited

BTG Corporate Finance LLP

BTG Adwisory tInvestigations} Limited

Springboard Corporate Finance LLP

Eddisons Commercial (Property Management) Limited
BSMH Limited

Ernest Wilson's {West Yorkshire) Limited

JSDNSW Limited

MMXI Limited

6. Trade and other receivables

2020 2019
£°000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings 40,471 32,001
Other debrtors 23 32
40,494 32,033
7. Trade and other payables
2020 2019
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Other craditors 67 48
Amounts falling due after mare than one year

Other creditors 500 500

The company has no financial instruments other than those shown as financial liabilities above, all of which are denominated in sterling.
The directors consider the fair values of the financial instruments approximate to their book values and that the main risk to the company
arising from financial instruments is interest rate risk, which 1s kept under review.
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L STATEMENTS

Notes to the company financial statements
continued

8. Share capital
2020 2015 2020 20519
thousand thousand £000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5 pence
AU May 114,351 0127 5719 5,508
Staff SIP scheme — 13 - 1
Issue of shares for share-hased payments 79 834 4 43
Shares 1ssued as consideration for acquisitions 1,460 1,485 73 74
Shares issued as deferred consideration 770 1,892 38 93
Other share issues 11,041 — 552 —
6,386 5,719

At 30 April

Ordinary shares carry no right to hxed income and each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the company.

127,701

114,351

The company has issued share options as set cutin note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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